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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Zentiva S.A.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Zentiva S.A. (the Company), with official
head office: 50, Theodor Pallady Blvd, District 3, Bucharest, identified by sole fiscal registration number
R0O336206, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial pesition
of the Company as at December 31, 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with the Order of the Minister of Public Finance no. 2844/2016,
approving the accounting regulations compliant with the international Financial Reporting Standards,
with all subsequent modifications and clarifications.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), Regulation (EU)
No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 (“Regulation (EU)
No. 537/2014Yand Law 162/2017 {, Law 162/2017"}. Cur responsibitities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountanis (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements in Romania, including
Reguiation (EU) No. 537/2014 and Law 162/2017 and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate {o provide a basis for our opinion,

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context

of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinicn therecn, and we do not
provide a separate cpinion on these matters.
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For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements” section of our report, including in refation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The resuits of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinicn on the
accompanying financial statements.

The resuits of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,

provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provisions for tax exposures

The Company was subject to a tax assessment in
respect of claw back tax, income tax and value
added taxes covering prior periods and is alsc
part of a number of tax litigations in regards to
the claw back tax which are not finalised at the
end of the reporting period. In addition, the
Company business operating model involves a
significant number of transactions being
concluded with related parties.

Given the inherent uncertainties with respect to
interpretation of tax regulations, complexities of
transfer pricing, changes in tax faws over the few
past vyears and uncertainties over the final
outcome of pending tax litigations, judgement is
applied by the management in estimating the
final cutcome of such litigations and estimates
are applied in relation to determination of the tax
provisions.

Notes 2, 17 and 21 to the financial statements
include disclosures made by the Company in
regards o these matters. The Company
recorded a tax provision of RON 12 million as at
December 31, 2017 and disclosed the tax
litigations in progress.

Tax provisions were significant fo our audit
because the assessment process is complex and
judgemental and amounts are material to the
financial statements.

We assessed the recognition and measurement
of tax provisions in the financial statements. Our
audit procedures included, among ofhers,
assessment of latest correspondence of the
Company with the tax authorities, obtained
letters from the Company's external lawyers on
the status of tax litigations in progress and
evaluated their responses, involvement of our
tax specialists to analyse and corroborate the
assumptions used by management to determine
the tax provisions and contingencies by
considering the relevant tax law requirements
and the tax authority assessment practices.

n addition, we performed analysis on any
materiai tax implications of related party
transactions. Our audit procedures included,
among others, involvement of our own iax
specialists to assist us to evaluate the fransfer
pricing analysis available fo the Company for the
main related party transactions.

We assessed the adeguacy of the Company's
disclosures in the financial statements in respect
of the tax provisions and tax contingencies and
litigations.
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Other information

The other information comprises the Anual report of the Beard of Directors but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. We obtained the Annual Report of the Board of
Directors, prior to the date of our auditor's report, and we expect to obtain the Non-Financial
declaration, as part of a separate report, after the date of our auditor's report. Management is
responsibie for the other information,

Our audit opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materiaily
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, on the other information obtained prior to the
date of our auditor's report we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

"Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Order of the Minister of Public Finance no. 2844/2016 approving the accounting
regulations compliant with the International Financial Reporting Standards, with all subsequent
modifications and clarifications, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud cr error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Fhie Engiish version of tie audit report represents a translation of (he original andit report issucd in Roimtaian laggoape



Hiuilding & better
working world

As part of an audit in accordance with iSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

b2

-
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, desigh and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controf;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as & going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report o the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our cpinion. Cur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report, However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company o cease to continue as a going concern;
Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial stalements represent the underlying
fransactions and events in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other mattefs, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters.

The Faglish version of the audil report represents a translation of the oviginal audit repoc 1sgaed in Remssian language
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‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Reporting on Information Other than the Financial Statements and Our Auditors' Report Thereon

In addition to our reporting responsibilities according to iSAs described in section “"Cther information”,
with respect to the Anual report of the Board of Directors, we have read the Anual report of the Board
of Directors and report that; '

a) inthe Anual report of the Board of Directors we have not identified information which is not
consistent, in all material respects, with the information presented in the accompanying
financial statements as at December 31, 2017,

b) the Anual report of the Board of Directors identified above includes, in ali material respects,
the required information according to the provisions of the Ministry of Public Finance Order
no. 2844/2016 approving the accounting regulations compliant with the International
Financial Reporting Standards, with alt subsequent modifications and clarifications, Annex 1
peinis 15-19;

¢) based on our knowledge and understanding concerning the entity and its environment gained
during our audit of the financial statements as at December 31, 2017, we have not identified
information inciuded in the Anual report of the Board of Directors that contains a material
misstatement of fact.

Other requirements on content of auditor's report in compliance with Regutation (EU) No. 537/2014

of the European Parliament and of the Council

Appointment and Approval of Auditor

We were appointed as auditors of the Company by the General Meeting of Shareholders on April 27,

2017 to audit the financial statements for the financial year end December 31, 2017. Total"
uninterrupted engagement period, including previous renewals (extension of the period for which we

were originally appointed) and reappointments for the statutory auditor, has lasted for 13 years,

covering the financial periods end December 31, 2005 till December 31, 2017.

Consistency with Additional Report to the Audit Committee

Our audit opinion on the financial statements expressed herein is consistent with the additional report
to the Audit Committee of the Company, which we issued on March 21, 2018,

The Baplish version of the audit report represents & wenslation of the oviginal audit report issued in Romanian languags
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Provision of Non-audit Services

No prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the
European Parfiament and of the Council were provided by us to the Company and we remain
independent from the Company in conducting the audit.

In addition to statutory audit services and services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
no other services were provided by us to the Company, and its controlied undertakings.

Cn behalf of,

Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL

15-17, lon Mihalache Blvd., floor 21, Bucharest, Romania
Registered with the Chamber of Financial Auditors in Romania
Nr. 77/15 August 2001

Name of the Auditor/ Partner: Mihaela Sandu
Registered with the Chamber of Financial Auditors in Romania Bucharest, Romania
No. 1610/16 August 2005 26 March 2018
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ZENTIVA SA

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2017
{amounts are expressed in RON, unless specified otherwise)

STATEMENT OF COMPRERENSIVE INCOME

Sales of goods
Rendering of services
Other income
Turnovar

Other operaling income

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress
Raw materials and consumables used

Employee benefits expenses

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Marketing and adverising expenses

Rental expenses

Reversal off {expenses with) provisions

Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Financial income
Financial Expenses
Profit hefore tax

Income Tax Expehse
Profit after tax (A)

Qther comprehensive income:

Actuarial gainsfiosses in retation to employee benefits
tmpact from reevaluation of land and buildings

Impact of deferred tax related to regvaluation recognized in
aquity

Qther comprehensive income net of tax (B}

Total income after tax {A) + (B)
Mumber of shares

Earnings per share {(RON/share)

Nots 2017 5618
51 426,814,358 387,798,794
5.1 30,403,034 31,088,107
1,159,653 1,417,407
51 458,377,046 420,004,308
6.1 5,200,047 5,440,103
3,848,785 1,672,107
52 (196,842,714) (187,175,858)
6.5  (59,063,423) (50,517,563)
. (21,418,471) (14,091,815
66  (23,010,538)  {19,729,003)
(3,976,678)  (3,579,367)
17 13,560,445  {1,782,408)
62  (70,833.877) _ (80,294,202
106,061,521 89,946,312
6.4 8,826,225 1,940,954
6.3 (7,961,716} (2,425,172)
106,026,030 69,462,004
714 (17.283274)  (16,323,448)
85,642,756 73,138,646
(401,000) (112,000
45,250,865 -
_____ (7,160,364) .
37,669,501 (112,000)
137,332,257 73,026,646
416,964,150 416,061,450
0.21498 0.17514

The financial statements on pages 3 to 55 were approved by the Board of Administration and were
authorized for issue according to the Administrators’ Decision of 22 March 2018.

Administrator,
Name and sgmame:
ue V lentin

Prepared by,
MName and sumame. Georgsta Danu

Position; Chief Accountant
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U ZENTIVA SA

STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL POSITION
As at 31 Decemhber 2017

(amounts are expressed iin RON, unless specified otherwise)

Note 2017 2016

31 December 31 December

Assats
Nan-current assefs

lntang|b1e agsets
Current assets

Invantortas

Trade and ather curreni receivables
Cither financial assats

Cash and cash sguivaienis

atal agsals

Capital and resarves

Share capital, including

lasued share capital

‘Shate premium, including: -
Shars premium at nominal valua
inflmtion related {0 share orentium

Reyatustion reserve

Ik i s amy mme s g bmad Foaainaeal
Hetained eam :f'lQm(A\..Cumd]cucu LiTS5SE;

Total equity

- Legal and other raserves. .. ... . e

- Properiy plant and. eqr!mmem .......................................................................................... 0 AR B24ARET.

7
10 758970  759.828
{37,553,352 7 e s
12 40,549,376 42,002,203
13 156,176,809 173,143,655
. 2323
6 980,792,774 127,510,418
"385.519.969 343,149,299

TUAGT 312,307 440,675 475

At L L

151 41,698 115 41,696,115
41,696,118 41,695,118

184 24,984,806 - 24,364,506
9,663,684 0,863,684

Ngfs-f'wrent habiimes

(Jther ionc torm liabilities
Neferred iax lia bifjly
Men-curent provisions

Total non-current fiabilities

Current liahilities

- Trade secounts pavable -

Ingurne laxes payable
Gther aurrent labiliiies
Short-term provisions
Total current liabilities

Total Habilities

Adiministrator,
Nams and surname.
_,/mejle Valentent
k._ /’ ":'i/'? } ;
‘:‘/ "j"/ - / e
%ﬁfﬂéy o !.' i \\
igmgany slamin

Total Tiabilities and eguity =" T T

8.2 12,145,368,

15,106,822 13,100,827

A0 108 377 2387878

OB, TAZ BAB oo

FOA, 748,728 o o

13,308,818

A7

19, ~81.078,772. - 84180 638
L4 488 828 44071.379
18 36,010,839 30,196,708
17 15 044,877 24,340,578
115,678,414 322,798,305
126,017,332 134,285,824
497 112, 30'! C4AB071.478

The financial statements on pages 3 to 55 were aporoved by the Board of Administration and were
authorizad for issue-according o the Administrators’ Declsion of 22 March 2018

Prenared by, - o
Name and surname: Georgeta Danu

Position, Chief Accountant -7

Signature
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Registration numbes ni pm‘wqqiﬂﬂa organization
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{E‘IME ?ew‘msuram Saris

f 76 HAR 208

j' Gfgigu rr}r ldf ntn

5.2 _ 118,480,603 _ 132,314,433
358,004,565 _ 705801651 _
-- :B_v.-----:;aqj:cce P -E-;--’_-?'{Sj—f};}g:ﬂ--.-.-.: e i e s
- 8,675
72 6,494,408 922,288
7 5091012 5,364,366
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ZENTIVA SA :
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017

(amounts are expressed in RON, unless specified otherwise)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profif before tax

Depreciation and amortization

Receivable allowance movement

inventory allowance movement

Movements in provisions for risks and charges
{GainY/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Pension liabilities expenses

Inferest revenues

Operating profit before working capital changes
Change in inventories

Change in trade and other receivable

Change in trade and other payable

Cash generated from/ (used in) operations
income tax paid

Employee benefits liabilities paid

Net cash from! (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of nop-current assets
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid

"%1 December .

31 Becember

Cash transferred for dividends payable to Central Depositary

Net cash fromd/ {used in} in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivaiants

Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the period 1

January

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 31

Decernber

Note 2017 20186
106,928,030 89,462 094
9,10 21,416,471 14,081,815
13 (244,814) {34,128}
12 526,453 2,293,970
17 (13,568,446} 1,782,408
6.1 159,722 (37,288)
238,000 (36,000)

6.4 (910,643) {(289,497)
114,639,773 107,233,373
917,375 5,668,899
15,211,860 56,845,998
(1,226,754) 16,419,838
129,542,054 186,288,208
7.1 (19.456,074) (18,720,713}
{152,000} {153,000)
106,533,980 169,414,495
31,325 75,282
5,10  (16,828,958)  (11,547,122)
910,643 280,497
(15,886,891 (11.182,343)
16 (60,574,115)  (37,395,831)
{590,518} (298 658)
(61,164,633)  (37,694,480)
32,882,356 120,537,662
127,910,418 7,372,756
160,792,774 127,910,418

The financial statements on pages 3 to 55 were approved by the Board of Administration and were
authorized for fssue according 1o the Administrators’ Decision of 22 March 2018,

Administraior,
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unfess otherwise stated)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

These financial statements of Zentiva SA (the "Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
autharized for issue in accordance with the Board of Administrators Decision dated 22 March 2018.

The Company, formerly named SICOMED S.A, Bucuresti ("Sicomed”) was established in 1962 as
Intreprinderea de Medicamente Bucuresti (“IMB”) — "Bucharest Drug Company”. The Company’s current
legal address is 50 Th. Pallady Bivd, Bucharest, The Company is registered with the Trade Register under
number J40/383/1981.

In 1990 Sicomed became a joint-stock company, by incorporation and taking over of all assets and
liabilities of the former intreprinderea de Medicamente Bucuresti {"IMB") — "Bucharest Drug Company” in
accordance with a Government Decision. The initial share capital was the result of the difference between
the assets, including the specific revaluation of land and buildings contributed by the State to the
Company, in accordance with the Government Decision, and the related liabilities.

In Gctober 2005, a majority interest in the Company was acquired by Zentiva Group (a large
pharmaceutical group operating in Centraf and Eastern Europe), through the acquisition of shares in
Venoma Holdings Limited, Zentiva Group (through ownership of Venoma Holdings Limited Helding and
Zentiva NV) has control over the Company's operations.

Starting with 24 January 2008, the Company changed its name from Sicomed SA into Zentiva SA.

Starting with 11 March 2009 a change occurred in the shareholder’s structure at the Group level (Sanofi
Aventis has acquired 97% of Zentiva NV — Company parent — shares).

The main activity of the Company consists in the production and trade of human drugs and medication.

Since 2007, following a decision taken by Zentiva Group, the Company has been operating all its sales
through the Romanian branch, i.e., Zentiva international {entity incorporated in Slovakia) (*ZIRO") and as
a resuit, the Romanian market (i.e. distributors) has been supplied with the Company’s products through
ZiRO. Starting with 1 October 2011 the sales are realized directly through Sanofi Romania SRL and, after
this date, Ziro became a dormant entity which is to be liquidated.

The Company is listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange.

The Company has no investments in subsidiaries or associates as of 31 December 2017. The company is
being consolidated in the financial statements of its uitimate Parent, Sanofi.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Order
of the Minister of Public Finance no. 2844/2016 approving the accounting regulations comptiant with the
International Financial Reporting Standards applicable to companies whose securities are admitted to
trading on & reguiated market, with all subsequent modifications and clarifications. These provisions are
atigned with the requirements of the International Financfal Reporting Standards as endorsed by the
European Union, with the exception of the provisions of IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates regarding the functional currency. For the purpeses of the preparation of these financial
statements, in accordance to Romanian legislative requirements, the functional currency of the Company
is deemed to be the Romanian Leu (RON).

For alf periods up to and including the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with Romanian generally accepted accounting practice (Romanian GAAP).

l;mt b Yec-‘i:s:;;éaf?’m Bervices BRL
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial vear ended as at 31 December 2017

(alt amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise statetl)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION {(continued}
2.1 GOING CONCERN

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the
Company will continue in the foreseeable future. To evaluate the applicability of this assumption, the local
management analyzed the forecasts of the future cash inflows.

As of 31 December 2017 the net assets of the Company are higher than the net liabitities by RON
243,800,045 {as of 31 December 20186, the net assets are higher than the net liabilities by RON
220,350,994). At the same date, the Company has a comprehensive income RON 89,241,756 (2016:
RON 73,026,646).

The Budget for the year 2018 prepared by the Company’s Management and approved by the Board of
Administrators indicates positive cash flows from the operating activities, an increase in sales and
profitahility.

At the end of Qctober 2018, the Sancfi Group announced after the analysis of the ail avaliable options,
the taunch of segregation process of its generics division in Europe.

Zentiva S.A. it will be included in this segregation process. The main objective of Sanofi Group is to
identify a potential buyer willing to guarantee the sustainable increase of this business oh medium and
long terms. As at the date of the approval of these financial statements, this process in on-geing.

In the frame of the Sanofi European Generic divestment procass that is expected to take place during the
last part of 2018, Zentiva will continue to operate its business as usual, whife upholding its commitment to
offer affordable, high-quality, safe and effective medicines 1o our patients and customers.

The Management consider that the Company will continue the activity in the next predictable period and
therefore the going concern principle is applicable on the preparation of these financial statements.

2.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial
statements:

a) Foreign currency franslations

The Company's financial statements are presented in RON, which is alsc the Company's functional
CUrrency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated into RON by applying the exchange rates prevailing at
the time of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year-end
are translated to RON at the exchange rates prevailing on that date. Realized and unrealized exchange
gains and losses are charged to the income statement. The RON/ USD exchange rate as at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016 was RON 4.6597 RON/EUR and 4.3033 RON/EUR, respectively. The RON/
USD exchange rate as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was RON 3.8915 RON/USD and
RON 4 5411 RON/USD, respectively.

Exchange rate differences, favorable or unfavorable between the exchange rate used at recognition date
of the receivables or payables in foreign currency or the rate at which the assets or liabilities have been
previously reported in financiai statements and the exchange rate at the date of current financial
statements are recognized under income statement as income or financial expenses, as appropriate.

b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardiess of when the payment is being made.

lEnﬁ& ':’qugéfﬁé:m Serices SR
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ZEMTIVASA o e e e e,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-for the financial year ended as-at 21 December 2017~
(alt amotnts are expressed in Romanian | ei ("RON"), unless otherwise stated)

- 20BASIS OF PREPARATION icontinued)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty.

—aeting-as-principal or agent:-The Company has-decided it acts as a principalinali-of its revenie
“arrangements; excepting the ones beiow, Before the rever . fecognized the spacific recognition.
criteria as detailed befow must also be met.

The amounts collectad by the Company on behalf of third parties and which are based on agreements for
itermediation, agency, commercial mandaie, concluded under the law, are not revenues frorm current
activity becauss the gross economic benefit inflows include the amounts coilected on bahalf of the owner
(berieficiary). instead, only the applied commissions are revenues, hecause they are the actual revenues
from current activity.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods s recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of ihe goods, Revenue from the saie of
goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or raceivable, net of returns and
allowances, frade discounts and volume rebates,

Randering of services

Income from service rendering is recognizad in the period in which they wers deliverad and ; coording o
the completion percentage. Revenue from the sale of goods measurad at the fair value of the

S R LI L

consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Interast inconie

""""""""""""""" For all"finanicial nstrinisnts isasired st amontized cost and inferest bearing Tinandial assets classified as
available for sale, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), EIR is the rate that
xactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected iife of the financial
instrurmient or & shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financiai asset or
iimbility. interest income is included in finance income in the income statement.

c} Taxes
Current incorre tax

Cureent income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured af the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in Romanja.

- Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
income staternent. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with raspect to
situations in which-applicable tax reguiations are subject to internretation aad astablishes provigions

whara appr@pnate e e e s e s e s e e+

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the ability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabiliies and their carrying amounis for tinancial reporting purposes at the reporting date,
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deation |
e Ty




ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATENMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(afl amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON?), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, unless:

¥ Deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or iability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

> Deferred tax assets are recognized for alt deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be ulilized, except:

» When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible tempeorary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent

that it is ne longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that fulure taxable prefits will allow the deferred tax

asset {o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Value added fax

incomes, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

¥ When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assels or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense item, as applicable.

» When receivables and payables are stated at the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

d) Property, plant and equipment
Initial recognition

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Such cost includes the cost of replacing pait of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for
tong-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

2 6. MAR. 2018
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ZENTIVA 8A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- for-the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017 - - SR
(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise stated) .

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION {continued)

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required o be repiaced at intervals, the
Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount

“ofthe plant-and equipment as a replacement if the recogaition critena are satisfied Al other repairand ™ 77 7 7 77
maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for
-the-decommissioning of an asset afterits useis included-in thercost of the respective asset ifthe -
recognition criteria for a provision ara met.

The cost of an item of propeny, plant and equipment comprises:

= its purchase price. inciuding import dutes and non-refundatie purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates,

» any costs direcily attribitable i0 bringing the assat to the iocation and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

» the initial estimate of the costs of dismaniiing and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as a
consequence of having used the ifem during a particutar periad for purposes other than 1o produce
inventories during that period.

Dsemed cost as of the iransition date (1 Jaiivary 2017)

As of the transition date (31 December 2010), the Company used pravious revaluations recorded under
Ramanian GAAP as its deemed cost on those dates for land and buildings, while it used historical cost

e HE R R NN (el 1L

adjustments for hyper-inflation for equipment.
Subseguent measurement

Land and buildings are measurad at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and impairment
losses recognized at the date of revaluation. Valuations are performed with sufficient freguency to ensure
---------------------------- that the fair-value-of 2 revalued-assat-doss not differ materially From- 1o CAMFYIRG BRMBURT - ror e ors oo

A revaluation surplus Is recorded in other comprehensive income and credited to the asset revaliation
reserve in equity. Howaver, to the axtent that itreverses a ravaluation deficit of the same asset praviously
recogsized in profit or oss, the increase is recognized in profit and loss. A revaluation deficil is recognized
in the income statement, except w the exdent that i oifssis an existing surplus on the same asset
recognized in the asset revaluation reserve. Additionally, accumuiated depreciation as at the revaluation
_revaiued ameunt of the asset. Upon disposai, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset
being soid or written-off is transferred to retained sarmings in the respective financial year

The Company contracted an independent evaluator specialist to determine the fair value as of 31
Decernber 2005, 31 December 2008, 31 December 2011, 31 December 2014 and respectively as of 31
December 2017,

Theother tangibles-are evaluated-at historical cost from which the amortisation is deducted and sy
adjustments for depreciation of the value.

Depreciation method

............................................ Depreciation is-calculated: - O e e e e e e
»  Un a straight-line basis for buildings, noncurrent assets purchased under a financial lease and
noncurrent assets in use at 31 December 1997,
# 0n areducing balance method for propery plant and enuipment acquired or put in function after
1 January 1998,
- e gm————
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ZENTIVA 5A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON), uniess otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Useful lives

The economic useful life use is the period of time over which an asset is expected to be available for use
by an entity, Economic useful lives for property, plant and equipment have been assessed by specialized
employees, Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis or reducing balance, over the whole useful
life of asset.

Land is not depreciated.

The average useful lives for the categories of Property, plant and equipment, are as follows:

» Buildings 30-50 years
»  Production egquipment 5-20 years
» Transport vehicles 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant par initiaily recognized is derecognizad upon
disposal or when no future economic henefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on unrecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residuat values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriata.

Lease contracts

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessge

Finance leases that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
item to the Company, are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constani rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in the
income statement.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the tease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the iease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the {ease term.

Company as a lessor

l.eases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

‘E'r-ne‘:ma_m&ssﬁmmﬁﬂi-l
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ZENTIVA 54

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for.the financial year ended as 2t-31 Decamber- 2017 =

{afl amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unfess othpnawee sfared)

2. BABIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Payments made under operatihg leases are recognized in'proﬁt or ioss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense,
over the term of the lease.

-Minimum lease payments made underfinance leases-arg-apportioned between the financa-expense and - oo
-the-reduction-of the outstanding liability. ‘The finance-expense-is allocated-to-each-period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability,

intangible assets

Intangible assets acguired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangitle assels are carried at cost iess any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairmant losses. Intemally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are
not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic ife and assessed for impainnent
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and
the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewad at least at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the expected uzaful life or tha expectad pattera of consumgption of
future economic henefits embedied in the asset are considered {0 modify the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amontization expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recogrized in lhe income statement as the expense category that is
consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

¥ Software 3 vears :
.............................. o Heseweh and fevelODImEl SOBE e S e s

Gains or losses arising from unrecognition of an intangivle asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal. proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the income
statement wher the assel is derecognized,

Research and develogment cosis

Research costs are expensed as incurred, Jevelopment expenc:tures on an individual project are
recognized as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

» The technical feasibility of comipleting the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use
or sale;

*  lis intention to complete the intangible azsets and its ability to use or seil the asset:

» Flow the intangible asset wili generate fuitire economic benefiis;

» The-availability- of resources to complete the intangible asset;

¥  fhe abiity 10 measure reiiably the expenditure during deveiopment,

Following initial recogmition of ihe development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less

-any.accymulated amortization.and accumulated Impairment.losses. Amortization of the. geset-beging..
when develfopment is complete and the asset is avaitable for use. Itis amortized over the period of
expecied fulure benefit. Amortization is recorded in cost of sales. During the period of development, the
asset is tested for iimpairment annuaily.

L
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(all amotnts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued}
Patents, licenses and trademarks

Patents, licenses and trademarks are recognized as intangible assets and measured according to the
useful life {finite — amortized, indefinite — tested for impairment).

Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement
1) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurerment

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are
recegnized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are direcily attributabie to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery within a time frame established by regutation
or convention in the market place (regutar way trades) are recoghized on the trade date, Le., the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assels designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as hetd for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading uniess
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financiat assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financiat position at fair
value with net changes in fair value presented as finance costs {(negative net changes in fair value} or
finance income (positive net changes in fair value) in the income statement.

Financial assets designated upon initiat recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
their inittal recognition date and only if the criteria under IAS 39 are satisfied. The Company has not
designated any financial assets af fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and recefvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pant of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in fmance income in the income statement. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in the income statement in * Other operating expenses .
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LREN T A e s
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended as at 31 December- 2017 -
{(alt amounts are expressed in Romanian {ei ("RON), unfess othemfrse stafed)

2. BASIS GF PREPARATION {continied)
Dérecognit:’on

A financiat asset {or, where apphcable a part of a fman( il a‘;aet or part of 2 group of similar financial
“assels) s derecognized when:
¥ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.
~» ~The Company has transferred-its rights to recalve cash flows from the asset o has assumed an
obligation to pay the recéived cash flows ih full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (@) the Company has transferred subsiantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither fransierred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, bul has iransferred controi of the assel.
¥ When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cagh flows from an asset ar has antered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluaies if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized io the exient of
the Company's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated iiabilily. The transferred asset and the assdciated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
= Cominuing mvoivement that takes the form of a guarantes over the transferred asset is measurad
at the jower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be reauired to repay.

. 2) Impairment of financial assets.

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence thal a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impairad. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if there is oblective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurad
since the intial recognition of the asset {an incurred 1oss event') and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the Company of financial assets that can he reliably

e sstimated. Evidence-of impsiment may inciude indications that-the debtors or 2 group of deblors

experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principat. payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptoy or other financial reorganization and observable data indieating
that there is a measurable decrease in the ostimated future cash flows, sueh as changes in amaars or
economic coniditions that correlaie with defauits.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is decreased by the depreciation oss, directly for all financial

assets, except for trade raceivables, cage in which-the carrving amount is reduced by using an C e e e
_impairment adjusiment account. if a recelvable is considered nop- recoverable it 15 efiminated and

deducied from the adjustment for impaimment. Subsequent recoverties of the amounts eliminated

previousiy are credited in the adjustrent for impairment account. The changes of the carrying amount in

the adjustment for impairment account are recognized in "Other operating expenses”.

3) Financial liabilities

Iritial recognition and rmeasuremeni

Financial tiabilitiés are classiied as financiat Habiliues at tair value through protit or loss, ioans and

bofrowings, or as derivalives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge as avuropriale‘
The Company determines the G!assifica!ion-of--its--ﬂnancia!--!ia Hitizs-at initia :‘ecogm*:or P

Ah fmanmal i:abmtses are recogmzeq rmt;al!y at farr value and in the case of foans and bowowmgb net of
directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, overdrafts, loans and bomowings.
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(alt amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON”), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial fiabilities depends on their classification as described below;
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial tiabilities held for frading and
financial liabilities designated upen initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on fizbilities held for trading are recognized in the income statement.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initia! date of recognition, and only if the criteria in 1AS 39 are satisfied. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR ameriization process.

Amortized cost is calcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integrat part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the income
statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee coniracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for fransaction costs that are directly attributable to

- the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate of
the expenditure required to setile the present obligation at the reporting date and the amount recognized
fess cumuiative amortization.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires. When an existing financial Habifity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the unrecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

~ The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income statement.

4) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is also an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the
frabilities simultaneously. e
& ..
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES 76 THE FINANGIAL STATERENTS ~

forthe financial year ended as-at 31 -December 2017- :

(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (*RON"}, umes‘s orhemf.-se shfpd)

2. BABIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

$) Fair value of financial instruments

~Thefairvalueof inancialinstrurienis that arefraded-inactive markets atsach reponing date is
“aetermined by iefarence 1o guoted market prices or dealer priceyuatations {bid price forfong positians ~ 77 77 7T
and ask price for shont positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

inventories
The main categoiies of inventores are. raw malanials, wark in progress, semi-finished producis, finished
products, commaodities, spare parts, consurnables and packaging materials.

The cosis of inventories are comprised of all costs of purchase, costs of production {including alt direct
and indirect cost atliibutable to the operational activity of production) and oiner costs incurred in bringing
the inventories o their present condition and location.

The value of work in progress and finished goods includes costs of raw materials, direct labor, direct

production costs and indirect production overneads including depreciation. Financing costs are nat
included in stock valuation.

Inventories are measurad at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

. Net reslizable value is ine astimatad salling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of compietion and costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories is determined on the
weighted average basis.

The Company periodicaily analyses inventories to determine whether they are damaged, obsolete or
siow-moving or if their net realizable value has declined, and makes allowance for such inventories.

Impairment of non-financial assets

i'he Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
irppairad. If any indication exisis, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required, the
Company estimates the assel's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's or cash-generating.unit's (CGU fair value tess costs to sel! and its value in use. Recoversble
amouni is determined for an individuai asset, uniess the asset does not generate cash infiows that are

“largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset
or C(3U exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate thal reflects cuirent market assessiments of the tinie value of money and the risks
specific to-the-asset: In-determining fair value less cosis to-sell, recent market transactions-are taken into
account. it no such transactions can be dentified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calcuiations are corroborated by valuation rnultipies quoted share pmes for publ:ci; trdded Lompames or
oiner available fair value indicators.
-lmpairment lcases of continuing operations, including impairment on inventeries, are recognized in the— o
income statement in expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired assel, except for a
property previously revalued when the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. in this
case. the impairment is also recognized in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any pravious
revaluation.
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

{all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assetl's recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognized in the income statement unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case, the reversal is freated as a revaluation increase.

Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand
and shori-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shori-term
deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis.

Provisions
General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuit
of a past event, it is probable that an cutfiow of resources embodying economic benefits wili be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or alt of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense refating to a provision is presenied in the income statement net of any
reimbursement.

Provisions are reviewed and premeasured at each batance sheet date and adjusted in order to refiect the
best estimate. If an outflow no longer probabie, the provision is reversed and it is recognized revenue.

Restructuring provisions

Restructuring provisions are recognized only when the recognition criteria for provisions are fulfilled, when
ali the following conditions are met:

¥ The Company has an cofficiat restructuring plan which includes: details in regard to the segment it
relates, the main locations affected, approximate number of employees which wil receive
compensation for ceasing their service, their positions, the costs for the plan and the restructuring
plan date.
The Company raised a reasonable expectation that the restructuring will be achieved by starting
the implementation of the plan or by presenting its main characteristics to those affected.

Y

A restructuring provision will onty include direct costs refated to the restructuring process, namely those
expenses that are generated as such by the restructuring process but are not related to the Company's
continuing business.

The Company has a constructive obligation when a detailed formal plan identifies the business or part of
the business concerned, the location and number of employees affected a detailed estimate of the
associated costs, and an appropriate timeline. Furthermore, the employees affected have been notified of
the plans main features.

[ —
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ZENTIVA SA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

--for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017 - - 0 o
{all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"}, unfess otherwise stated)

Z.BAZIS OF PREPARATION {continued)

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reftects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Land and water contamination provisions are recognized as contamination occurs for any legai
obligations of clean up, or for constructive obligations if the company's published policy is te clean up

“even if there is no legaf requirement to do so {past event is the contamination and public expectation
created by the company's policy).

The Company is pianning to perform an ecological remediation which wili lead to manitoring the soil and
the underground water.

Litigation provision

Litigation provisions are recoghized when management estimated that the possibie tuture cash flow due

N LR,

io unfavoraiie litigations,
Employee benefit obligations

-Duaring the current activity. the company makes payments fo.the Romanian State budget relating teits
employees post-retirement benefits. All employees are included in Romanian state pension plan. The
company does not operste any other pension scheme and, consequently, does not have any obligation

ralated to pensions. in addition, the company has no legal obligation to provide additional benefits 10

former or current employees, other than what is described below:

Aceording to the collective labor agreement, the company grants to its employees on retirement a variable
--------------------------- number of salares depending-an lengthof service in-the company: This-is-2-defined postemployment———————-
benefit plan.

up to 20 years with the company, one average gross satary at the unit ievel,
betweert 20-30 years with the company, 1 and % of the gross average salary at the unit levei;
¥ Gver 30 years with the company, 2 gross average salaries at the unit fevel,

The retirees receive the bansfit according to seniority leve! in the company, as follows:
>
;_.

_In addition, wher the employees reach the age 50, get a benefit according to seniority level in company,
as tollows (treated as another long-term employee benefit):
¥ 10-20 years with the company, ¥ of the basic salary;
= Over 20 years with the company, one hasic salary;

Provisions for post-employment benefits and other long-termt employee benefits obligations are estimated
based on e colfective labor agreerent of the Company, by a specialized external actuary.

The Company uses the actuarial valuation method of the projectad credit factor for measurement of the
prasent vatue of post-employment benefit obligations and related current service cost. This involves the
use of demographic assumptions about the future characteristics of current and former emplovees who
- are-cligible for-benafits-{mertality - rates-of employee turnover lay-offrate, ete )-as well-as-financial
------- assumptions {discount rate, inflation rate; salary increase rate): in the event that-further changes in-thie - = e
key assumptions are required, the fujure amounts of the post-employment benefit costs may be affected
materially.
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei "RON’), unfess otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION {continued)

Actuarial gains and losses for the post-employment defined benefit plan are recognized in full in the
period in which they cccur in other comprehensive income. Such actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in retained earnings and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The past service costs are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis over the average period until
the benefits become vested. Past service costs are recognized immediately if the benefits have already
vested immediately following the intreduction of, or changes to, a pension pian.

The Company's policy for other long-term employee benefits is to recognize actuarial gains and losses in
the period in which they occur in full in profit or loss.

Related parties

Parties are considerad related when one party, either through ownership, contractual rights, family
relationship or otherwise, has the ability {o directly or indirectly conirol or significantly influence the other
party. Related parties also include individuais that are principal owners, management and members of the
Board of Administration and members of their families, parties with joint controf over the Company's joint
ventures in which the Company is a venture, post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of the
employees of the Company.

Retained earnings

The remaining profit after the allocation of the 5% to the legal reserve up to the 205 of the share capital
limit set by the law is recorded in the opening refained eamings of the following financial pericd, when the
profit appropriation takes place.

The actual accounting for profit appropriation is therefore made in the next financial year, subsequent by
the Shareholder's General Meeting approves the respective appropriation, i.e. the dividends approved
and other reserves as per the faw provisions.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statementis requires management o make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgments

in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements:

¥ The management of the company considers that the level of provisions recognized under previous
GAAP reflect the level of ricks the company is exposed to;

¥ The management of the Company decided that its functional cunrency is the RON considering the
following aspects:

= The Company records costs mostly in the national currency RON;
« The Company records revenues mostly in the national currency in RON, though, some revenues
are based on EUR prices;

» The management exercised judgment in determining the nature of the claw back and considered
that it would be appropriate to classify as a reduction of revenues; the alternative way it was to be
considered as an operational expenses. Management has considered this is more similarto a
rebate, or contingent adjustment on sales made. J
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CZENTIVA sA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-for the financial year-ended as at 31 December 2017 - :
{afl amounts are expressed in Romanjan Lel ("RON), un:‘ess othemrse stateo‘)

SGIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES ANDY ABSUMPTIONS {continued)
Estimates and ass'umptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

“reporting datethat have o significant rsk of causing s materlal adjustrment to the {,arrymc: amountsof
-------assets an&h:.bliities Wi*ﬂh. lhe *?e/* f;nar;cia! year are de,cnber* beiow

Taxes, charges and iax provisionsg

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and
fhe amount and Uming of fulure taxabie mcome,

Al amounts due to Stale authoritles for taxes have been paid or accrued at ihe balance sheet daie. The
Romanian tax system undergoes a consolfidation process and is being harmonized with the European
legislation. Different interpretations may exist at the level of the 1ax authonties in relation to the tax

legislation that may result in additional taxes and penalties payable. Where the State authorities have

tindings from reviews relating fo breaches of Romania’s tax laws, and related regidations these may result
in; confiscation of the amounts in case; additional tax liabilities being payable; fines and penaities (thad

are mpplied on the total cutstanding amount). As a resull the fiscal penaities resulting from breaches of the
legal provisions may rasult in 2 significant amount payabie to the State.

At each year end the Company makes an estimate of its potential tax iisks and determines the potential
rigk lavel 1 ,qmﬁ thair best astimation, and, a3 a resui, n:r(':ﬁm?r—'-:; a.snecific r‘.m\rqegnn inthe financisd

1o oz (LR ha

statemenis, if appropriate.
Environmental provision and litigation provisions

The Company recognizes environmentat provision in relation to ecclogical rehabilitation and monitoring of
soil and underground waters.

The Company recognizes litigation provisions for the risks identified in relation to several court cases,
whose outcome is not certain.

Usefui fives for efements of property, plant ant eguipment and depreciation method

o' tne fespective assets

The Company considers and uses the *oilowmg depreciation methods:
»  Siraight fine for buiidings and assets acquired and mat in function before 1997;
» Acceleratedireducing balance for assets put in oparation after 1997,

Alfowance for bad clebts

- The Company estimates allowance forbad debts as a general allowance hased on theage of the
respective receivabla:
¥ Above 380 days: 100%

~Amounis.deducted from sales for prejected sales returns, rebates and price reductions
Returng, discounts, incentives and rebates are recognized in the period in which the underiving sales are
recognized as a reduction of sales revenue. These include provisions for price reductions under
Government and State programs, which are estimated on the basis of the spacific terrms of the relevant
reguiations and/or agreements, and accrued as each of the underlying sales transactions is recognized.

The provisions are subject to centinuous review and adjustment as appropriate based on the most-recent
information available to managerment.
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

{afl amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei {"RON"), unfess otherwise stated)

4. STANDARDS AND NEW AMENDNMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO STANDARDS
A} Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the
following amended FRSs which have heen adopted by the Company as of 1 January 2017:

» 1AS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments)

The objective of the Amendments is to clarify the requirements of deferred tax assets for unrealized
iosses in order to address diversity in practice in the application of IAS 12 income Taxes. The specific
issues where diversity in practice existed refate to the existence of a deductible temporary difference
upon a decrease in fair value, to recovering an asset for more than its carrying amount, to probable fufure
taxable profit and to combined versus separate assessment. The amendments are not applicable for the
Company.

+ [AS 7: Disclosure Initiative {Amendments)

The obiective of the Amendments is to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The Amendments specify that one way to fulfil the disclosure reguirement is
by providing a tabular reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the statement of
financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities, including changes from financing cash
flows, changes arising from obtaining or losing controf of subsidiaries or other businesses, the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates, changes in fair values and other changes. The amendments are not
applicable for the Company.

The 1ASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 ~ 2016 Cycle, which is a collection of
amendments to IFRSs. These annual improvements have not yet been endorsed by the EU, There is no
impact on the financiai statements of the Company.

> IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: The amendments clarify that the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 12, other than those of summarized financial information for subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates, apply to an entity's interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale, as held for distribution, or as discontinued operations
in accordance with IFRS 5.

B) Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

+ |FRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application
permitted. The finai version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments reflects all phases of the financial instruments
project and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and ail previous
versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment, and hedge accounting. The Company's Management assessed the impact of this standard
and considers that there is no significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

¢« |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 establishes a
five-step model that will apply to revenue earned from a contract with a customer (with limited
exceptions), regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The standard’s requirements
will also apply to the recognition and measurement of gains and losses on the sale of some non-financial
assets that are not an cutput of the entity's ordinary activities (e.q., sales of property, plant and equipment
of intangibles). Extensive disclosures will be reguired, including disaggregation of total revenue;
information about performance obligations; changes in contract asset and liahility account balances
hetween pericds and key judgments and estimates. The Company’s Management assessed the impact of
this standard and considers that there is no significant impact on the Company's financial statements.
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ZENTIVA 84

“NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2047

(alf amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON"), unless otherwise stated)

4. STANDARDS AND NEW AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO STANDARDS {continued)

¢« IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Clarifications)
The Clarifications apply for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with eartier apnlication

permitied. The objective of the Clarttications is to clarify 1he IASE's intentions when developing the

" requirements iniFRS 18 Revenue from Contracts with Cusicimers. paiticularly the accounting of

identifying performance obligations amending the wording of the “separately identifiable” principte, of

~principal versus agent vonsiderations including the assessment of whether an entity is a principal or an

agent as well as applications of control principle and of licensing providing additional guidance for
accounting of intellectual propeity and royalties. The Clarifications aiso provide additional practical
expedients for entities that either apply IFRS 15 fully retrospectively or that elect to apply the madified
retrospective approach, The Company’s Management assessed the impact of this standard {including
clarifications) and considers ihat there is no significant impact on the Company’s financia! statements.

» IFRS16: i.eases

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. IFRS 16 sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, nresentation and disclosure of leases for both parties toa
contract, L.e. the customer (‘lessee’) and the supplier (lessor’). The new standard requires lessees 1o
recegnize most leases on their financial statements. Lessees will have a singie accounting mode! for all
leases, with certain exermplions. Lessor accounting is substaniially unchanged. The standard has not
been yet endorsed by the EU. The Company’s Management assessed the impact of this standard and
considers that there ie no significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

% EF"QSE? insuran ¢ Gondracts - - . P .o Lo .. e .

The standard is effective for annuai periods beginning on or after 1 danuary 2021 and earlier application
is permitied if IFRS 15 “Revenue fram. Contracte with Customers'and ITRS 9 * Financial instiurnents”
anplied,

IFRS 17 "Insurance contracts” sets out the principles for the recognition, measurament, presentation.and

- disclosure of the issued insurance contracts. Also the standard sets out the application of the simiiar

principles for the insurance and investment contract with discretionary participation. The obiective is to

ensure thal the entities-provide the- accuraterinformation iri & relevant way, Whict reprasemts faifly thase

“contracts. This information provide the basis which-enable to users of the financial statements to assess

the effects of the contracts under IFRS 17 on the statements of the financial position, cumprehensive
incams and cash fiows. The slandard had not been ehdorsed by the U The standard is nof applicable to
the Company.

«  Amendment in IFRS 10 Gonsolidated Financial Statements and 1AS 28 Investments fi

Associates and Joint Yentures: Sals or Contiibition of-Assets Satween an lnvestor and ite

Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and

those in 1AS 28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an invesior and its associate or
joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognized when a
transaction invoives a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute 3 husiness, even if these assets are
housed in a subsidiaty, In December 2015 the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment
indefinitely pending the outcome of ifs research prolect on the equity mathad of accounting Tha o
amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Company's Managemenl assessed the impact’

of this standard and considers that there is no significant impact on the Company's financial statements. . . .

o -+ 1FR3 Zi Classification and Measurement of Sfiare based Paymeént Transactions (Amendments)

" The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning onor affer 1 January 2018 with earlier

application permitted. The Amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the effects of vesting
and non-vesting conditions on the measuremant of cash-settled share-based payments, for share-based

payment transactions with a net setilernent feature for withholding tax obfigations and for modifications to
the terrns and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the classification of the transaction from

‘casisettied to equity-setiled. Thess Amighdmsnts have not vet been endorsed hv the EU. The

Company's Managernent assessed the impact of this standard and considers that there is no significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

{aft amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (*RON"}, unless otherwise stated)

4. STANDARDS AND NEW AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO STANDARDS (continued)

« |FRS 4:Application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments together with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
{amended)
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and earlier
application is permitted. The amendment refers to the implication generated by the implementation of the
new standard retated to the Financial Instruments IFRS 9, before the implementation of the new standard
regarding the insurance contracts developed for replacing the IFRS 4. The amendment infroduce two
options for the entities which issue the insurance contracts: the temporary exception from IFRS ¢
application and an approach based on overlapping which would permit the entities issuing the insurance
contracts under IFRS 4, to reclassify some revenues and expenses generated by the financial assets
from income statement into other items from the Comprehensive income. The standard is not applicable
to the Company.

« [AS 40: Transfers to Investment Property {Amendments)

The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier
application permitted. The Amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property
under construction or development into, or out of investment property. The Amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property
and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management's intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use. These Amendments have not yet been endorsed
by the EU. The Company's Management assessed the impact of this standard and considers that there is
no significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

» |FRS 9:Prepayment features with negative compensation (amended}

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier
application permitted. The amendment permit to the financial assets Prepayment features, which allow or
need as a part of the contract either to pay or to receive a reasonable compensation for the eariier
termination of the contract (such as that from the perspective of the owner of the qualified asset it is
possible to exist a negative compensation) to be valued at amortized cost or the fair value through other
items of the Comprehensive income. These Amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The
Company's Management assessed the impact of this standard and considers that there is no significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

« |AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (amended)

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 with earlier
application permitted. The amendment sets out that the measurement and, especially the requirements
related to the impairment of the investments in associates which, in fact are part of the net investment in
the respective joint venture, it should be ruled by IFRS 9, IAS 28 or a combination of these two standards.
The amendment clarified the fact that an entity applies {FRS2 Financial Instruments before applying IAS
28 to those investmenis in associates on which the equity method is not applicable. In the application of
the IFRS 9 the entity does not take into consideration the adjustments on the accounting values of the
Investments in associaies, which are generated by 1AS 28. These Amendments have not yet been
endorsed by the EU. The Company’s Management assessed the impact of this standard and considers
that there is no significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

s IFRIC INTERPETATION 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with eartier
application permitted. The interpretation clarifies the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or
payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency. The interpretation covers foreign currency
transactions when an entity recognizes a non-moenetary asset or a non-monetary liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration before the entity recognizes the retated asset, expense or
income. The Interpretation states that the date of the transaction, for the purpose of detemmining the
exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income
lighility. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the
transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. This Interpretation has not yet been
endorsed by the EU. The Company’s Management assessed the impact of this standard and considers
that there is no significant impact on the Company's financial statements.
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ZENTIVA SA
- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- forthe financial year ended as at 31 December 2017 o

{alt amounts are exprassed in Romanian Lei ("RON’), unless othemf.ise stared,l

4. STANDARDS AND NEW AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO STANDARDS {continued)

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle, which is a collection of
amendments to IFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017 for IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and on or ﬂftcr tJanuary 2018 for FRS 1 First-

""" Comome e hmeAdoption oF tnternationsl Financial- Reporting Standards and for 1AS 28 Investimernis in“Assosiates 0 7
and Jomnt Ventures. Earlier application is pemitted for IAS 28 investn‘nents in Associates and Joint

~-Ventures. These annual improvements have not yet been endorsed by the EU- The Company's ™

managemert assessed the impact of improvements and considers that there is no significant impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

«  JFRE T First fime adopiion of iIFRS

This amendment aliminates the short term axcapiion, ralated to the information o be provided in
conrection with the financiai instruments, empioyvee’s benefits and investment entities, applicable to the
entities which adopted the first time the IFRS.

® )‘AS 28 fnve:ﬁmu?td in Aqsoc:‘a:‘e% and Jr_)ini V?nturm
an associaie or a jpint venture tha{ is held by an entity that is venture capitat orgam?ation, or other
qgualifying entity, is available for each investrment in an associate or joiit venture on an investment-by-
investment basis, upon initizt recognition,

s |FRIC 23 Uncertainty over income statement treatments
The intarratation is effective for annual pereds beginning-on oF after 1 -danusiy 2079 with earhc
appfication permitted. The interpretation approaches the accounting of income tax when e fis¢
freatments imply an uncertainty degrae which might affect the application of 12812 The interpret 3!'0.,
provides guidance related fo the analyses of cerain fiscal treatment ot stendalons level or combined, the
fiscal autherity's audits, the appropriate method which refiects the uncertainty and the accountability
regarding the changes in environment. The interpretation has not been endorsed by the EU. The
Company's Management assessed the impact of this standard and considers that there is no significant

R RESRGERR LS irpact on-the Gormpany e fnancial SlatemeEnts - :

The JASH has issued the Annual Improvements ic FRSg 2018 — 2017 Cycle, which is 2 colicchion of
amendments to iFRSs. The interpretation is eifective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 with earlier application permitted. These annuai improvements have not yet been endorsed by the

EU. The Company's management assassad the impact of improvements and considers that there is no

%Lgnxfthnt impact on the Company’s financial statements.

LB :FRS 3 Busmeds combmatlons and iFRb 11 Joint arrangemenis: The. |mprovements on tFRS
3 clarify the situation when an entity holds the control on an enterprise. which is a joint venture,
that entity revalues the interests held previously in that enterprise. The araendment on IFRS 11
slarifies the fact that, when the entity holds a common contro! on an enterprise which is a joint
venture, the entity does not revalue the interests held previousty in that enterprise.
» IAS 12 Income taxes: The improvements clarify the fact that the effecis on the incorne taxes on
the payments related to the financial instruments classified as equity should be recognized
© similarfy with the regegnition of the transgadtions and past évents, which generated brofif to be
distributed.
IAS 23 Borrowing costs: The improvements clarify the point 14 from this standard, which
S_{‘)ECEﬁES whan the asset is. availahla sither for usIge or for sals and snma C:Y\Dr‘!'ﬂ(" hor rmmipac-
~related tothis asset are-outstanding at that morment, Lnos:.e uurrowmgs snould he consmelec into’
- the amounts which the Company generaiiy borrow. '
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON”), unless otherwise stated)

5. SALES OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES AND RAW MATERIAL EXPENSES
5.1 Turnover

For management purposes, the Company is organized into business units based on its products and
services. The company has one reporiable segments and namety production of drugs.

The management of the Company monitors the operating results of its business as a whole, for the
purpese of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Performance is
evaluated based on operating profit or foss, gross profit or loss and is measured consistently with
operating profit or loss in the financial statements.

The Company monitors the sales transactions, considering the domestic and the foreign sales.

01.01- 01.01-
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Domestic sales 248,634,287 213,184,411
Sales abroad 208,742,758 206,818,897
Total 458,377,045 420,004,308
a) Rendering of services 30,403,034 31,088,107
b) Sales of goods, including: 426 814,357 387,798,794
Sales of finished goods 413,796,181 385,505,158
Sales of goods for resale 27,380,321 13,208,665
Residual products 167,942 161,289
Claw back tax expense (14,530,086} (11,677,317}
c) Other reventues 1,159,653 1,117,407

Claw back tax

Starting with the last quarter of the financial year ended 31 December 2008, within the pharmaceuticals
business, for the companies that are Market Autherization Holders for certain drugs, a new tax has been
introduced named the “claw-back tax”.

For the purpose of financing the health expenses, holders of marketing authorizations of medicinal
products included in national health programs are reguired to pay the claw-back tax on a quarteriy basis
for the concerned medicine sales related to the concerned quarter based on the notifications received by
the Company from the National Health insurance Fund {CNAS).

The contribution (the claw-back tax) must be paid by holders of the medicines marketing authorizations,
or their legal representatives, if these medicines are:
¥ Prescribed within the Romanian healthcare system;
» Used in out-patient treatment {with or without a patient contribution} on the basis of a medical
prescription and available through public pharmacies, in hospital treatment, or used as part of
medical treatment offered in dialysis centers.

Starting with 2011, the methnd of claw back tax computation was explained by Government Emergency
QOrdinance no, 77 as published in December 2011). As a result, the quarterly contribution is calculated by
applying a percentage “p” to the sales made by each Authorization holder (payer of the contribution),
percentage p is determined by reference to actual levelivalue of the consumption of medicines, which are
paid for by the National Health Insurance Fund and the budget of the Ministry of Health. The value of
percentage "p* and the total consumption of medicines recorded in the statistics of the social heaith
insurance system are communicated to the payers by CNAS by the end of the month which follows the
end of the quarter.
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L L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017- e
(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON), uniess othenw‘;e '?.t‘ated)

5. SALES OF GOUGDS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES AND RAW MATERIAL EXPENSES
{continuad}

Starting with 2012, the computation was changed by the Government Emergency Ordinance no, 110 as

published in Seplernber 2012, The new computation method is performed based on the information about .
Cactiigi consumptioninrthe inarket, Which 1s'guantery received by'the taxpayer froth the National Heaith 77 77

insurance Fund

The Company presented the claw back related 1o sales realized durmg the year as a reduction in
Turnover realized during the year.

£.2. Raw matarial sxpenses

Raw maierials and consumables used Note 01.01- 01.01-
31.42.2017 31.12.2016

Raw materials T ' 1 117,342,012 " 57,008,333
Cost of Goods for resale 14,565,544 8,610,654
Packaging materials 2 40,765,433 38,333,2G7
Auxiliary materials 3 8,439,359 7.730,145
Litilities 4 8,329,419 8,192,162
Other material expenses 5 7,200,847 6,701,357
Totab . . . L . . _A%6842744 967 f:r;—'.,gsg... .
The amounts referencaed in the gbove {gble at 'ir :2 I~ uofnpngc ::Ia:n:y SXIENses W Ath raw materisls and
direct materials, packaging and auxiliary expenses used in production. The amounts referenced at 4 —

utilities - comprise mainly expensas with energy and water.

--------------------------- &=-Fhis-category mainty -contains-theexpensey with materiats ot stored- refated (o-thecertification
department for the product manufactured in Turkey and India, which will be distributed on the Eurcpean
Uinion Member State markets and for the cerification of the products existing In the Zentiva portiolic.

Curing 2017, the cost of raw materials increased compared 1o the prior year due to the changes in the

structure of the sold products during the curent year and also due 16 the Increasing of the volume sold

during the year 2017 compared with the previous year, which qenerated the overall increase of the
turnover ~fnrmors details . ses the MNote 5 4 Turnover.. . . .

6. QTHER INCOME/OTHER EXPENSES AND ADJUSTMENTS

6.1 Other operating income

Other operating incorne ' B 1 3 1 N L
31122017 31422016

~Gainy {foss) from disposai of assets . 37288 )
Services ta Sanofi Romania SRL .. . L. e 3028857
Other operating income i 585 023 1,673,958
Total 5,209,347 5,440,103

The Company recognizes revenues from the reinvoicing of services provided by the employees of éentwa —
o Sanoft Romania SRL (sister company) -- MHR (Manhour emopioyee fee/ hour), l_,w--—""z.-:f " m:‘h‘




ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(all amounts are expressed in Romarian Lef (*RON”), uniess otherwise stated)}

6. OTHER INCOME/OTHER EXPENSES AND ADJUSTMENTS {continued)

Under “Other operating income” the Company recognizes as services to Sanofi Romania SRL certain
services related to the marketing and promotion of certain services under the Sancfi Aventis brand.

6.2 Other operating expenses

Other expenses 01.01- 01.01-
31.12.2047 31.12.2016
Management sarvice expenses 9,725,537 8,433,430
Promotion/MHR expenses from Sanofi Romania SRL 10,157,357 10,212,483
Repair expenses 6,234,767 7,081,525
-Sponsorship 24,053 82,946
License — Zentiva trade mark 6,973,374 8,460,017
Travel expenses 1,837,044 1,451,734
Write-off of inventories 2,190,793 4,164,047
Taxes 728,538 5,305,491
Professicnal fees 728,745 694,693
Telecommunication expenses 859,331 800,168
Fines and penalties 41,839 154,766
Other expenses 31,304,851 33,193,063
Net allowance for inventories and receivables 427 547 2,259,841
Total 70,833,876 80,294,202

The management service expenses include a wide variety of support, such as:

Management support services representing the product portfolio management and its development
{monitoring, support on fransfers, projects to optimize production processes of the Company), for the
procurement process {supplier menitoing, negotiations of the major contracts for raw materials), legat
suppert (review and suppert for international/complex situations related to the Romanian business
environment) and financial services (monitoring of sales, support for production cost planning and
optimization, definition of production flows for the local production capacity).

Marketing and sale promotion services: support for the launches of new products, monitoring services
and local market performance improvement, business plan reviews to suppert management decisions
and the best practices and policies of the Group.

Production and logistics services: support for production flows, management and optimization of
transport costs, monitoring and support the optimization of the local proeduction capacity
performance, sharing the best practices between the Group companies having production capacities,

IT support services: maintenance of IS systems (SAP and other common applications used by the all
entities from the Group), operational and day-to-day support regarding the IT infrastructure and the used
software, management and execution of iT projects relevant at local level.

Promotion expenses comprise mainly the equivalent value of the prometion services performed by the
employees of Sanofi Romania SRL for the products existing in Zentiva’ s portfolio and distributed by it on
the focal market. The services are paid based on Man/Hour rates agreed by the parties.

Taxes include other local taxes and the non-deductible VAT related to misceltaneous costs. The
decrease in the current year as compared to the prior year is mainly due {o the taxes paid by the
Company to the state authorities {such as the Naticnal Agency for Medicines for registering new
medicines produced by the Company).

[&ﬁmaumm%‘?&oemsm
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TES 10 THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTE 77

- for the financiai year ended as at 31 December2047 -~ oo o
{aff amounis are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"). unfess otherwise stated)

& OTHER INCOME/OTHER EXPENSES AND ADJUSTMENTS {contimied)

QOther expenses include: expenses for studies and research in the pharmacetitical field, expenses for
obtaining the authorization for production, equipment maintenance and repairs, fransportation. security,
""""'"i’ntranet se'r'\.ricj'é's an"c':l' ath"er 'mis'éeiléﬁé'ox;a cbét"s' Th’i";' 'catégor'\; éfs’b'inclﬂde’é’tﬁe personnel lease servicess

amployees who hav 3

ovrded seivices fcr Zentwa SA -otherthan the'prorrsotion"ones"pfesented"ab e

“These costs have grown in the current year as compared to the prior year. as tey are directy inked o~~~
the Company’s production activity which has increased in the current year as compared to the prior year,

Repair services include: repair services related to the production equipment and repairs related to the

auin vehici= figet

The Company presents the amounts in relation to increase and use of aliowance Tor inventones and
receivables on a net basis under “Other operating expenses’, if the net impact is an expense. As of 31
December 2017, the net value of the allowance for inventories and receivables amounting to RON
381,639 (2018: RON 2,252 841) is mainly represented by the decreasea of the inventories allowance in
amourt 6f RON 626,561 and by the increase of the réceivables aifowance in amount of RON 244,814,
Aiso, this line contains the impact of the written-off receivables, which were not provided initially, in

arnount of RON 45,810
and in Note 13: Trade and other receivables (current}.

~Tor further delails piease see the comments inciuded in Note 12 hwentuies

Financial expense 01.04- a81.01-
3422047 31.12.2048
Foreign axchange loss expense 7,961,716 2,419,308
Interest expenses o .. 5863
T RO e e :"'7 981, ”‘3"'""""""2?42531?2 """"""""""""""
8.4 Firance ifcomig
Finance income ¢1.01- 01.04-
31.12.2017 31 12 2015
- Foreign-exchange gain income 915581 - 1 651‘45?
terestincomre 910,643 289,497
Totai 8,826,224 1,940,954
5.5 Employes henefits expansa
- Employee benefils expeanss ‘z C‘. GO
31.12.2017 31.12.2018
“Wagesand salaries . ..46.411.780 39, 860 51510 IR
Sccial security costs .. LADBTR 288 L 8B02556.
Post-empleyment and other long term umpioyee benefits — net
impact 236,060 (36,000)
Other short term benefits (%) - 1,540,354 1,090,127
Tetal 59,063,422 50,517,563

{*; - the expense ropresents meal lickets granfed fo employses.

&mavm;mﬁfwmmam_‘
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ZENTIVA SA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(alf amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON’), unfess otherwise stated)

8. OTHER INCOME/OTHER EXPENSES AND ADJUSTMENTS (continued)

6.6 Marketing and advertising expenses

The Company recognized as expense for marketing and advertising the expenses incurred for TV promos

and other types of media advertising.

The Company uses some local media suppliers for these advertising campaigns.

{n 2017, the Company concluded advertising agreements mainly with the advertising agency Lion
Communication Services for the TV promotion campaigns, the total value of these services being of RON
7.554,765 (2016; RON: 6,450,601}, but also with other advertising agencies.

The main campaigns made in 2017 are for the following products:

Antinevralgic si Antinevralgic Forte
Dicarbocalm

Ibalgin

Modafen

A2 A

7. INCOME TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

7.1 Income tax

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliations between the expenses with the

accounting and fiscal tax and profit for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are:

fncome tax expense 01.01- 01.01-
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Current income tax 18,871,520 16,982,707
Deferred tax (7.2 / expense (income}) {1,588,248) {659,261)
Total 17,283,274 16,323,446
Tax reconciliation 01.01- 01.01-
: 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Profit before income taxes 106,926,030 89,462,094
Income taxes calculated at the tax rate applicable in Romania of
16% {2015: 16%) 17,108,165 14,313,935
Non-taxable income (2,403,231 (156,488)
Non-deductibie expenses 2,602,393 2,248,945
Fiscal credit (24,053) {82,945)
Income taxes reported in the income statement 17,283,274 16,323,448
Movement in the current income tax during the year 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Balance as at 1 January 4,071,379 3,809,385
fncome tax expenses for the current year 18,871,520 16,982,707
income tax paid during the year (19,456,074} {16,720,713)
Balance as at 31 December 3,486,825 4.071,379
Estal & Youna Aszutenes Servicas SR
31 7 6. MAR. 2018
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ZENTIVA SA e
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- for the-financiad year ended as-at 34 December 2017
{afl amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei {("RON”), unfess othenwse sfatod)

7. INCOME TAX AND DEFERRED TAX {coniinued}

7.2 Deferred tax

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and liabilities i and only If it has & Tegal Ey*"é'nf'rﬁ'rceabie fight 1o R
T setoff cunrenttak assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax asseis and defarrad 1ax liabilities
--":'Iate to incorne- taycs Ecwe{. by .he -£ame: ta*( a horay

Deferred tax refers o

tncome statement and
sguity movemant/itetained

Deforred Incoine ax eamings
31.12.2017 31.12,2016 2017 2iri6

- Deferred income tax assets

employee benefit liability 290 N80 188,160 101.820 12,160
" Provisions, ifcluding depreciation for T I . T

iangible assels 2,055,085 2275673 {220,588) 476,052

intangibies - 8,551 {6,551) 7,516

Estimate of the provision for employea's

management and for leaves not taken 1173078 1,022 404 160,875 1,022,404

Total {a) 3,518,244 3.494,758 23,456 1,518,133

- Deferred income tax liabilities
F"o”er*y plant and equipment. recognized

i the income statement 2,435,252y (4,600,042} 1,564,790 (858,872
Property, plant and equipment- recognized
in equity {7.577,388} {417,034} _{7.18G,364) 18,477
Total (b) {(10.012,650)  {4,417,076) {5975,574) {842,395}
R o Netdeferved Tax Incoine ) - (b)) T U(6,494 '4'0'5} """"" IR 285? I C A T (7 £ <1 T

The defeired ax — liabilities reiated o propernty, piant and equipment 1s generated by the temporary
difference between fiscal and accounting based of the carrying value of the property. plant and squipment
and is mam!\_r related to differant ysofl life andg f‘fnprp(];ahop mathod

The Company recognizes items in profit and loss account and equity, as follows:

Deferred tax

Recognized in profit and 10ss (7.1) (1,588,246) (659,261)
rRecognized in equity 7,160,364 (18,477}
Total 5872118  {€75,738)

Basic earmngs per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted -
. average number of ordinary shares oufatandmg during the yvear e

Piluted eamings per share amounts are ca!cuiated by dividing the net profit atiribLitable to ordinary equity

holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares} by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of

ordinary shares that would be issued on convarsion of ail the dilutive pofential ordinary shares into

ordinary shares. :

There have been no other transactions mvoivmg ordmary shares or potentlal ordinary shares between the

reporting date and the date of authorization of these financial statements.

r
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017
(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unfess otherwise stated)

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Gross Value at 1 January 2016
Additions

Disposals

Transfers from CiP

Gross value at 31 December 2016

Degpreciation and impairment at 1
January 2016

Charge for the year

Disposals

Depreciation and impairment at 31
December 2016

Net book value 31 December 2016

Gross Value at 1 January 2017
Additions

Disposals

Impact on revaluation reserve

Resvaluation Impact in the income
statement

Depreciations written-off after
reevaluation

Transfers

Gross value at 31 December 2017
Depreciation and impairment at 4
January 2017

Charge for the year

Disposais

Depreciation written-off after
resvaiuation

Depreciation and impairment at 31
December 2017

Net book value 31 December 2017

Machinery,
tools and Constructions
Land Buildings eguipment in progress Total
11,421,887 47,575,975 147,791,637 7,898,683 214,688,192
- - - 11,480,257 11,480,257
- - {310,700} - {310,700)
- - 6,970,558 {6,970,558) -
11,421,887 47,575,975 154,451,495 12,408,382 225,857,749
{991,003) {2,070,058) (111,920,178} {1,051,649) (116,032,889}
- (1,811,242} {12,123,677) - {13,934,919)
- - 272 707 - 272,707
{991,003) (3,881,301} {123,771,148) {1,061,649) (129,695,101)
10,430,894 43,694,674 30,680,346 11,356,734 98,162,648
Machinery,
tools and Constructions
Land Buifdings equipment in progress Total
11,421,897 47,575,975 154,451,495 12,408,382 225,857,749
- - - 16,828,276 16,828,276
{991,003) - (788,075) {350,108} {2,710,186)
32,072,782 12,349,217 - - 45,250,864
{43,661) (5,982,716} - - {9,026,317)
{785,264) (5,547,078) - - {6,332,342)
- 2,082,203 11,283,745 {13,365,948) -
42,503,676 47,477,601 164,966,165 14,921,285 269,868,727
{991,003} {(3,881,301) (123,771,148} {1,051,649) {129,695,101}'
- {2,438,066) (9,794,197} - {12,232,263)
{891,003) - {508,010} (1,051,649) (2,550,662)
- {6,332,342) - - (6,332,342) -
- (12,975} (133,057,335} - {133,044,360)
42 503,676 47,490,576 31,908,830 14,921,285 136,824,367

The vatue of fully depreciated non-current assets as at 31 December 2017 is RON 113,044,360 (2016:

RON 94,645636).

Reevaluation of fand and buildings

As at 31 December, 2017 the Company revalued the existing land and buildings. The valuation was
performed by an independent appraiser in accordance with the International Valuation Standards.

The net impact of the valuation was in amount of RON 36,224,547 and it was recorded as following:

RON 45,250,864 representing the increase of the reevaluation reserve (please see the Note relaled the
Shareholders’ Equity Statement), and RON 8,026,317, representing the impact in the income statement,
under the line "Depreciation, amortization and impairment” representing the loss in the carrying value of
the specific buildings as a result of the reevaluation of these as of 31 December 2017.
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LZENTIVA 8A O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

~forthe-financial year ended as at 31 December 2017 : g
{all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON"}, untess otherwise stated)

3. PROPERTY, PLLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The fair value was determined by reference to market-based evidence, using cost approach as primary
vatuation approach, market approach (direct comparison method) for land valuation and income approach
{direct capitalization method} as.secondary valuation method. The valuation techniques are selected by
“therindependent-appraiser in accordance with international Valuation Standards, property iype and
valuation purpose. Valuation teohmques and methoc'e applled are in Iine wnh the corr*mon Pr at,lrce for the
type Of assets VaELIEd ....... mi e me e e eeeesseseees mesemsieses emrs seeees mien se mssma s s e s e s sess s eess seessses memess sies sesss ms meereeere mes esessssss s ses

The fair value is overall determined to be Level 2 and 3 in the fair value measurement higrarchy. The
inputs used in the valuation were either:

# Level 2 inputs based on the {FRS 13 classification {z.g. current rents, prices per sqrm, yields,
occupancy raies, eic. publicly available on the market for similar assets and other market-
corroborated inputs)

of

Level 3 {unobservable) inputs representing for example assumptions in respect to operational
costs, replacement costs, depreciation adiustimants -~ most of them dérived based on publicly
available technical studies (rather than direct inpuis from the market), with orderly adjustments
perionmed by thie appraiser.

v

The valyation is sensitive to its main inputs, being the market value per square mater for land {which was
estimated at 126 Euro/square meter). gross replacement cosis estimation {which were estimated using
iocal cost catalogues) and depreciation estimation {which were based on the physicai condition of the
assetls as at valuation date).

v U n i e 1 e e Ay o
The astimation of fair values using income approach and glocation technigues based on the ns

replacement costs of the constructions and the recommendations of the specific valuation standard for
the accounting purposes valuation, would have resulted in a similar value affocated to the constructions
and a residual value allocated to the land by approx. 5% higher.

The Company did not presented the carrying value of land and buildings at original cost because this
information is not available.

investments in progress

Int.luded in mvebtmente in progress at 31 December 201? was an amount of RON 14, 921 285 (2016

'.“As at 31 December, 2016, t'ne Company recorded an impairment provision amounting to RON 1._05?,649
{(2018: RON 1,051,649) refates to saveral investiments inade for SMB Laboratories and a syiup
production line, which were not finalized as at that date.

During the year 2017, the Company's Management decided to dispose these invastments and reversed
the provision leie*ed to them and existed as at 31 December 2018, the impact being reoognized in the

ﬂ::rmn tha vear 20 f‘ = r\ﬂﬁ of tha investments started ri:lrlqn tha year and intha. pngr nerio inde haya boan

“Compieted, being ':eneferreo from tne category of investment in ptogrese into the pulidings and machings ™~
and equipment. Their total value amounted to RON 13,365,948 (2016: RON 6,970,558). In January 2018,
the Company has put into operation equipment’s in amount of RON 5,668,505 from the construction in
progress existing as of 31 December 2017.

_;“---_..
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

{aif amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise stated)

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangihles

Other in progress

Development intangible and advance

cost assets payments Total
Costs as at 1 January 2016 63,632 3,885,411 902,091 4,851,034
Additions - - 66,865 66,865
Disposals - - - -
Transfers - 242,491 (242 4913 -
Costs as at 31 December 2016 63,532 4,127,902 726,465 4,917,899
Amortization and impairment at 1 January 2016 63,632 3,507,377 430,583 4,001,492
Amortization during the year - 166,879 - 156,879
Disposals - - - -
Amonrtization and impairment at 31 December 2016 63,532 3,664,256 430,583 4,158,371
Net amount as at 31 December 2016 : - 463,646 295,882 759,528
Costs as at 1 January 2017 63,532 4,127,902 726,465 4,917,899
Additions - - 178,618 178,618
Disposals - (11,280} - {11,280}
Transfer - - - -
Costs as at 31 December 2017 63,632 4,116,622 505,081 5,085,235
Amortization and impairment at 1 January 2017 683,532 3,564,256 430,683 4,158,371
Amortization during the year - 169,169 - 169,169
Disposals - {11,280} - {11,280
Amortization and impaimment at 31 December 2017 63,532 3,822,145 430,583 -
Net amount as at 31 December 217 ' - 294,477 474,498 768,975
..._____E____h“
w”""mmm&ﬂm&ﬁ
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7ERJTIE!A QA _
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the-financial year ended as at 31 December 2017 SR
(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise stated)

11, OTHER FINANCGIAL ASSETS

Starting with September 201 3, the Company concluded a cash pooling agreement with Sanofi SA -rance

{the parent entity}. In accordance with the contractual terms, the interest rate applied is ROBOR+ 15bp if
. the Company borrows and ROBOR - § bp if the Company makes deposits, respectively.

AQ of 31 December 201 7 *he cash poolmg account has a oebit ba;ance of ON 154,410,514 (2018;

The debit balance as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is presented under the fine “Deposits”
in Note 14" Cash and short term deposits”.

12. INVENTORIES

Inventaries 31122017 31122016

Merchandise 5,713,379 6,744,607

Finished and semi-finished products 10,162,250 16,737,416

Raw materials and supplies 29,263,929 20,661,901

Package materials 7,867,036 0,780,044

Less:

Allowance for obsolete inventories — { (124572187 (11,830,765

Total 40 549,375 4%,083,203

Changes i inventary impairment 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Balance at 1 January (11,820,788}  {9,528,795}

""""""""""""""" A Lf(liiléﬁ'&?(m?6453) TEZeRaTey T

Provision used - -

Release of provisions - -

Balance at 31 December {12,457,218) {11,83D.765)

lmpairment per inventory category 31122017 MAZZ06 . .
 Finishad and semi ™ finished producis ' C(7.584 157y 0 (8,1687,805)

Raw materials and supplies {3,062 254y (2,497,015

Package materials (1,800,807) {1,166,145)

Toial {12,457,218) (11,830,765)

The Company :ecogmzee an allowance for slow moving inventories, according to the Company poticy.

Tnereiore, as of 31 Decemper 2017, ot ihe wial provision of KON 12,457 216, the amount of RON

5,855,595 relates (o siow moving ilems. The difference of RON 7,371,821 represents a specific provision

recorded by the Company as of 31 December 2017 for the pilot be:ies of inedicines that are still in the
-stage: of beingapproved for r*nmrnpma{wa?mn inamount of RON 5,601,821 and aswsll 2 snacific ..

-..provision for packaging in amount of RON 770,000 (2015: from the total provision of RON- 11,830,765, the - o .

amount of RON 5,376,243 represents a provision for slow moving inventories and the RON 6,453,822

difference represenis a specific provision for the pilot series of medicines that are siill in the stage of

being approved for commercialization)

The Company.does not have any inventories pledged in favor.of third parties.as of 31.Decemb rZUT?” &
and 31 Dlecember 2018, respectivaly. B s
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unfess otherwise stated)

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES {CURRENT)

Trade and other accounts receivable 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Trade receivables (see aging below) 2,427,390 2,534,658
Trade receivables from related parties {see aging below) 119,655,160 141,263,498
Advances paid 8,187,612 4,328,072
Recoverable taxes ' 26,927 473 24,896,261
Sundry debtors 306,897 579,464
Prepaid expenses - 298,838 413,077
Less:

Allowance for doubtful trade accounts receivable (626,581) {626,561)
Allowance for sundry debtors - {244,814}
Total 158,176,809 173,143,855

The trade receivables do not carry any interest on them and are due mainly between 66-120 days,
starting from 1 December, 2015 (2015: the due date was between 60-240 days).

See below for the movements in allowance:

Allowance 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Balance at 1 January (871,375) {905,504)
Settings - -
Provision used - -
Reversal of previous years provision 244,814 34,129
Balance at 31 December (626,561) {871,375}

As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables amounting to RON 626,561 RON (2018: 871,375 RON} were
provisioned in full.

As of 31 December 2017, other receivables related to sundry debtors amounting to RON 244,814 were
adjusted in full (2016: RON 34,128).

The net movement in the provision for receivables amounting to RON 244,814 representing the expenses
as of 31 December 2017 is presented in Note 6.2: Other operating expenses {2016: RON 2,259,841). In
the same time, during the year 2017, the Company wrote-of receivables in amount of RON 45,910, which
were not provided previously — for further details regarding the impact in the current year result, please
see Note 6.2 Other aperating expenses.

The detail of trade receivables based on contractual terms as of 31 December 2017 and as of 34
December 2016, respectively:

Receivables Receivables due, but not provisioned
30-60 60-130 >180
Receivables not due  1-30 days days days days Total
2017 118,423,274 2,907,671 34,865 72,774 17,405 121,455,989
2016 139,482,205 3,014,674 243,114 324,712 106,880 143,171,595

See Note 22 on credit risk of trade receivables, which discusses how the Company manages and
measures credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired,

- _h—"_u_‘“‘“‘;:“-m._
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~forthefinancial year ended as at 31 December 2017 -
{alf amounts are expressed in Romarian Lej ("RON"), unless otherwise etafed)

t4. CASH AND SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

31.42.2017  31.12.5016

"Caish arbanks and o hand’ e 2as TS 0482300
Auvam e for ﬁaﬂr:em of dividentis ' 096 4 I 5,505,969

160,792774 A C K ELR 5 L

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are
made for varying periods of time between one day and-three months, dmending G the immediate cash

_____

As of 31 December 2017, the Company had issued letters of guarantees in favor of third parties for which
# had collateral cash amounting to EUR 3.311 and RON 3.557.

~As of 31 December 2017, the Company has restricted cash in amount of RON 45,991 (2016; RON 45 834
RON}, representing warehotise keeper guaraniees.

The amount of RON 8,096,487 included on the "Advance for payment of dividends” line relates to a
transfer tc the Central Depository for the dividend payment to the minority shareholders (2018: RON
5 :306 969)

btarting With Septembes 20 13, the Company concluded a vash pouling agreement with Sanofi SA France
{the parent entily). In-accordance with the connfacmaF terms, the inlerest rate applied s RCBOR + ‘pr il

the Company borrows and ROBOGHK - Sbp i i makss deposits, respectively. The interest received and
__paid for the cash-poolina transactions during the year amount to RON 910,643 and RON5863, ...

raspectively nil (2016 the interest received amounts to RON 288,927 and the interest paid amounts to
RON 5.863 RON) and thay are presented in Note 6.3 Financial expenses and Nota 8.4 Financial

""""""""""""""""" e Ty T T T
As of 31 December .204" *h ash pooling account has & debit balance of RON 154,410,514 {2016. RGN
121,358,218). . :

As of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018, respectively, the Company has a credit facility in

amount of RON 10,000, 00(} at BNP Parlbas Bank which l% not u%ed the interest rate :s HOBOH 'H‘u‘i +
1. 3% o3

15, 1ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized sharas T 322017 3 4z2046
 Ordinary shares issued andfuily paid ~_ Number  Amoumt
A Besmper s vi6561 156 st

At 31 December 2017 416,861,150 41,696,115

i 26 W 2818
;fvs[gﬁ-g? uf-:-“\'ifgr i




ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON”), urdess otherwise stated)

15. ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued}

31 December

31 December

Share capital ' 2017 2016
issued share Capital 41,696,115 41,696,115
Total share capital 41,696,115 41,696,115

Share premium

31 December

31 December

: 2017 2016
inflated share premium
Share premium (nominal value) 9,863,684 9,863,684
Inflation refated to share premium 15,100,822 15,100,822
Total inflated share premium 24,964,506 24,964 506

For the conversion to {FRS in accordance with Order 1286/2012, the Company recorded a hyperinflation
adjustment for the period 1992 - 2003 when Romania was considered a hyperinflationary economy in

relation to both share capitat and share premium.

éedeemable shares: The Company has no redeemabie shares as at 31 December 2017 {2016: no

redeemable shares).

Reserves
Reserves and other components of equity 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Retained earnings/{Accumulated Losses) 148,907,638 132,314,433
out of this an amount relating to hyperinfiation adjustment - -
Retained earnings, excluding hyperinflation adjustment 148,907,638 132,314,433
Total other reserves included in components of equity '

comprise of: Note 31.12.2017 31.12.20186
Legal reserves _ B 8,339,223 8,339,223
Other reserves {other funds) B 104,406,145 96,379,499
Revaluation reserve C 40,198,377 2,107,876
Retained earnings, excluding hyperinfiation adjustment A 148,490,603 132,314,433
Total Other Reserves 301,434,348 239,141,031

A) Retained earnings {(excluding hyperinflation adjustment) are made up of the following:

_31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Reclassification of distributable reserves to retained earnings 45,837,619 43,854,083
Fiscal faciliies (accumulated profit} 917,664 917,664
Retained earnings 7,489,835 4,024,530
Adjustmentis to IFRS (2,059,066) (2,059,086)
Revaluation of fixed assets used as deemed cost and
reclassified to retained earnings 7,814,490 7,814,490
Profitfloss for the year 89,642,756 73,138,646
Other equity elements e (1,152895)  (375,914)
Total Retained earnings 148,490,603 132,314,433
15. ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued} AR -

]Hnst&‘!numﬁsmma Sonicss sm,i

39

i i
Shret fanRenylioation



7':!\!“'!\!’& QA B
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017 S
{afl amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"}, unless otherwise stafed)

B} Leyal reserves

The Company set its legal reserve in accordance with the Company Law, which requires that 5% of the
annuat accountinc; proflt before tax Is transferred to Leqa! resewe unti the baiancp of this recerve________ o

Decemaer 20"7 and 31 De(,embe. 2018 rebp
G CRpia e e

C}) Revaluation reserve

A revaluation reserve is considered to be realized whern the coriesponding asset is disposed of or sold,
{Once the revaluation reserve becomes realized, it can then he distiibuted, As of 31 December 2017, the
Company recorded the amount RON 42 250,864 (2016: RON 2,107,876 related to the increase of the
value of land and buildings —~ for further details, piease Note 8 Property, plant and equipment.

D) Other reserves

Other reserves comprise of profit appropriation for the periods: 2004-2008, 2012-2013 and 2015,
respectively. Thase reserves are available for distribution as dividends.

E} Fiscal facilities

During the vear 2002, tha Cnr’”n;lrm hanefited from fieeal fanilitiag for tha axports pe{fon‘nnn in an amount
of RON 25,280 and for invesiments done from reinvested profit in value of RON 892,384,

16. DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED

euiing 2017, the-Company distributed-gividends in-amount RON 66,000,060 (2016 RON 40,000,000,
approved by the decision of the General Shareholders’ iieeting on 27 Aprit 2017, These dividends were
distributed fromthe resuit of the financial year ended as of 31 December 2015. For details, see Notfe
Statement of Changes in Equity.

_ dements were performea durmg ihe. ﬂnanwal year 201? in amourt RON a1 164 633 {2016 ?ON L
37,694,480), out of which. the amount RON 57 846 204 (2018: RON 32,837,320) was paid to the majority
shareholders.

The 2017 dividends will be proposed and declared in the financiat year 2018 according io the General
Meeting of Shareholders approval and will decrease the retained earnings in 2018,

17. PROVISIONS

ther provisions 3122087 3 112:2016
Provisions for litigations {211,549 {411,549
Provisions for taxes (11,752,670y (24,353,670}
Other provisions {2,245 983} {3.074,82%)
Environmental provision ' {5.925,487) (5,825,487)
Total (20,135,689)  (33,705,135)

(Err* Yoy »Q\&P‘JVWSPrmSPJ}
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(afl amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON”), unless otherwise stated)

17. PROVISIONS (continued)

Provisions for Provisions for Provisions for  Environmental Other
litigations restructuring taxes provisions provisions Total
As of 1 January 2016 1,452,665 - 23,063,670 5,925,487 1,490,908 31,922,727
Additions - - 1,300,000 - 2,164,874 3,464 874
Reversals (1,041,116} - - - {641,350} {1,682,466)
As of 31 December 20116 411,549 - 24,353,670 5,928,487 3,014,429 33,705,138
Cuirent - - 18,457,150 2,869,000 3,014,428 24,340,578
Long term 411,549 - 5,886 520 3,056,487 - 9,364 556
Provision for Provision for  Provision for Environmentaf Other
litigations restructuring taxes provision provisions Total
As of 1 January 2017 411,549 - 24,353,670 §,925,487 3,014,428 33,708,135
Additions - - - - 2,245,984 2,245,584
Reversals {200,000) - (12,601,000 - {768,446}  (13,569,445)
As of 31 December 2017 211,549 - 11,752,670 5,925,487 2,245,983 20,135,689
Cument - 9.8925 394 Z,B68,000 2,245,983 12,303,134
Long term 211,549 - 1,822 976 3,058,487 - 7,832,558

Provisions for litigations

Movements in provisions for fitigations refer to the change in the estimates during the year concerning the
Company's litigations in progress and which mainly refer to:

As of 31 December 2016, the Company has other provisions set for litigations amounting to RON
411,549, relating to:

» aprovision in an amount RON 200,000 for the litigation with the Territorial Labor Inspeciorate,
which was unfavorable settled for the Company during the year 2017. The provision was
reversed and the impact of it being reflected in the Comprehensive income in the line "income/
Expenses with provisions”.

¥ aprovision in an amount RON 154,481 for the litigation of the Company with the owner of a piece
of land tocated in the neighborhood of the Zentiva's office representing the costs it should incur
for transferring some pipelines crossing its land. During the year 2017, there are no changes in
the status of this litigation compared to 31 December 2016.

* a provision in an amount RON 57,088 representing the indemnity to be paid by the Company to
the widow of a former employee following a work accident that happened in 1994, During the year
2017, there are no changes in the status of this litigation compared fo 31 December 2018.

Provisions for taxes

Ag at 31 December 2016, the Company has set a provision for possible additional taxes and charges
which might be identified by the Romanian Fiscal Authorities in case of an inspection on the substance, in
the framework of the muitiple legislative changes, amounting toc RON 24,353,670, out of which RON
18,457,150 representing a provision for the claw back tax.

During 2016, upon the challenge filed by the Company, ANAF has cancelled the Taxation Decision F-MC
2370/12.22.2015 and has ordered a new review of the claw-back tax for the period Q4 2009-Q3 2011,
performed during the year 2017. ANAF issued a new Taxation Decision in amount of RON 8,356,150,
The Company decided to challenge the Decision, but this was rejected. Subsequently, the Company
decided to challenge the decision on the Administrative Court of Justice.

Until the date of preparation of these financial statements, this litigation was not settled and therefore, the
Company decided to reverse during the year 2017, the amount of RON 10,101,000 from the provision for
the fiscal risk and charges related to the claw back tax recorded as at 31 December, 2016 {this amount
being the difference between the provision recorded previously and the amount from the fiscal audit
report issued by ANAF in 2017},

Erdt Yam Asst;%oa Beneos SR,
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ZENMTIVA BA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

- for the financial year ended-as at 31 December 2017 e
(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"), unless otherwise stated)

17. PROVISIONS {continped) -

During the year 2017, starting with 22 May 2017 Romanian Fiscal Authorities made a fiscal control for
period 2011-2016 covering the follow fiscal obligation: corporate tax income, withholding tax, VAT and
Jranster prices file.

On 9 of March 2018 was issued the Final Tax Audit ne.122224 where is mentioned an additional _
...... e e acooraie tax N an amount of RON 743874 RON and an- sdditional sayable VAT i amoupt of 90502~~~ - -

RON. We mentioned that these amounts does not included penatties and interest related to penalties

which will be subsequently communicated by the Rormanian Fiscal Authorilies, being estimated by the

local management of the Company to be in amount of RON 749,438,

The locat management of the Company taken the decision to not challenge fiom 2 legal aoint of view, the
additional total debts of RON 1,573,834 imposed by Romanian Fiscal Authorities and these wilf be paid in
Aprit 2018.

Fa%iowino fo the mmoiraiion of th:s i'lx .audif ih@ (‘ommrw derided to reverse the amouni of RON

the fldeI authorities in case of a generat fiscal audlt and thererore as of 31 December 2017 the provision
recorded i this respect s iin amourt of RON 3,386,520, This provision includes in addition tu ihe debts i
amount of RON 1,573,834 imposed by the Romanian Tax Authorities an additional provision for possible
fizcal rigks related to the financial year ended as of 31 December 2017 in amount of ROM 1,822 6686,

- - -y
The movaivient it the 01y eaisiar: o foves in amount of RON 1"} 201 nng ‘aplresep-(ur-g the reversal af tha.

tax provision con&.*ituted for the claw-back tax in the amount of RON 10,101,000 and respectively by the
reversail of the provision in amount of RON 2 500,000 for the fiscal risks is reflected in the statement of
r‘r‘ni‘nni’eha-nf-.n;p income undar the line of “Incomea / fexpenses with pf(,“.’iliif.‘!‘.&lb\

The provisions for taxes are set for the amounts owed to the State Budget, provided that the respective
amounts are not reflected as liability in relation with the State.

Provisions for restructuring

As of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, respectively; the Company has no provisions for
restructuring.

Environinentaf provisions

L_nwronment prows;ons remrdea in amount of RON 9 5 487 for the financial year ended as of 31
December 2017 and respectively as of 31 Dacember ?016, representing the expenses related to
ecologicat repair/rehabilitation and monitoring of soil and underground waters. These provisions are
computed by specialists.

Other provisions

Under this category, the Company recardad othar provisiohs for rfisks ard éhargss rélated fo the
Company’s activity in amount of RON 2,245,884 (2018 RON 3,014,429), mainly consisting in the
provision set for the first series of products issued and which have been exported on other European
Union markets and for which the management estimates a ma;or risk Of withdrawatl in relation ta.such
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

{all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lef {"RON"), unless otherwise stated)

18. PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

As detailed in the accounting policy, the Company applies a defined benefit plan for the employees. This
plan requires the Company to pay the social security contributions for employees to the public pension
fund.

The Company, in the normal course of business, makes payments to the Romanian Siate on behalf of its
employees. All employees of the Company are members of the Romanian State pension plan. The
Company does not operate any other pension plan or post-retirement benefit ptan and, consequenily, i
has no chligation concerning pensions. in addition, the Company is not under the obligation to provide
additional benefits to its former or current employees.

Benefits granted at retirement:

According to the collective labor agreement, the Company grants te its employees on retirement a
variable number of salaries depending on length of service in the Company.

According to plan P1, the retirees receive the benefit according to seniority level in the Company, as
follows: '

a) up to 20 years within the Company, one average gross salary at the unit level;
b) between 20-30 years within the Company, 1 and % of the gross average salary at the unit level,
c) over 30 years within the Company, 2 gross average salary at the unit level.

In addition, according to plan P2, when the employees reach the age 59, they receive a benefit according
to seniority level in the Company, as follows:

1. 10-20 years within the Company, ¥z of the basic salary,
2. Over 20 years within the Company, one basic salary;

Provisions for pensions and similar cbligations are estimated based on the coliective labor agreement of
the Company, by a specialized appraiser — an actuarial expert.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the income
statement and the funded status and amounts recognized in the statement of financial position for the
respective plan:

o — .
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ZENTIVA SA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017
“(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (*RON’), unfess otherwise stated)

19. TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLES (CURRENT)

Trade accounts payable 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Trade payables 39,802,237 47,484 167
Trade payables related parties 21,150,824 16,581,571
Advances received 123,711 123,800
Total 61,076,772 64,189,638
Other current liabilities 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Wages and salaries payable 7,806,345 7,126,500
Social security contributions for salaries 1,285,002 1,233,582
Claw back tax (*) 4,032,072 3,270,392
Other taxes 458 906 454 432
Dividends payable 20,357,563 16,522,196
Other liabilities 2,070,751 1,688,607
Total 36,010,639 30,196,709
{*) Claw back 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Initial estimate of the tax liakility to the state budget related to the
last quarter 4,604,503 3,489,813
Regularization of the clawback tax related to the last quarter, according
to the notification received from the CNAS {572,431) (547,345)
Total 4,032,072 3,270,392
The terms and conditions of the financial liabilities mentioned above:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled between 30-90C day terms.
For terms and conditions concerning joint ventures and other related partties, see Note 20.
For explanations on the Company’s liquidity risk management processes, see Note 22.
M&Yaummﬁg?&esant;;&
2 6. MAR. 2010
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ZENTIVA 8A

~for the-financial-year ended as at 31 Pecember 2017 -

(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON”), unless otherwise stated)

20. RELAVED PARTY DISCLOSURES

20.1 Nature of the Eeiationships wifh related parties (“affiliated entities and other related parties”)

An entily is “reiaied" to another nn'it; if'

< i cor'trols oris controlieu by the othel e.nt.ty or |t is subject to the joint contyol of the other eni ly
“{including the == parent companies; thie subsidiziies or thie member stbsidiafesy

it has an interest in the respective entity, which gives a significant influence on it; or

+ it holds joint control on the ather entity;
b) it represents an entity associated to the other entity;
C} il represents a jolnt veniure in which other entity is an associats:
d) # represents a member of the entity or the parent company key management:
e} it represents a close family member of the person mentioned at points a) or d);
f) it represents an entity which is controlled, jointly controlied or significantly influenced or for which the

significant voting right in such entity is granted, direcily or indirectly, by any of the persons

mentioned at points d) ore); or
g) the entity represents’ a post-employiment benefits plan for the otfier éntity empicyees or for the

employees of any other entity refated to such entity.

Details of other related parties:

Country
Company name Nature of relatlonshie . Typesoifranssctions  ofarigin . Headguaries.
Zentiva k.s., Praha Company under joint control Goods and services Czech Praga
jpurchaseR evenue o Sevices Repuiic
Zandiva Grovn Praha as Company under joint control Services nirchaserRovenue from JZech Praga
services Republic
Zenidiva nternational, a.s. Campuny under joinl conlrol Services burchase Slovakia  Bratislava
Zentiva International, as. - Subsidiary of Zentiva Goods sale and services rendering  Slovakia  Somaria

Sucursala Buouresti

Intemalinr:al a8, whic.h is A

-~Zentiva-a:s:; Hlohovae

Sangf Auenhs Buiqdﬂa (-'OCId

Comp_ar:y urided joint conol

Company under ;omt cnn_tro!""----

Goods and services
purchasefServices rendering

Seivices rendering

Zentiva Saglik Urunian Comparny under joint controt Goods and services Turkey Islanbu
purchasefServices rendering
Sanofi Romania SRL Company under joint cortrot Goods sales and serviges rendering  Romania  Bucharest
Sandft Winthwop Indusiries Company under joink Conrot Goods and services France Gentilly Cadex
purchasesServices rendenng
Carralg nsurance erﬂed Company unden joint contro! nsurance Ireland Dublin
© Banafi A Cofigdiy Unasr jolnif §8 i LOBR T o France | Pails

Bulgaria  Sofia

Sanofi-Aventis Private Co. Ltd. Company under joint control Services rendering Hungary  Budapest
Sanoli Aventis Grouge Company undet joint conirol Services rendermg and purchase France Antony
Sancfi Aventis Spa Company under joint control Sefvices purchase ltaia Mitano

sanofi-aventis Deutshiand

Company under joint controt

Bervices purthuse

Germanla  Frankfuit

H

Sanofi India Limited Company under joint controt Services rendering India Wumbai
Sanofi Chimie Company uncer joint cantrot Sarvices purchase France Sisteron
Ledex
Sanofi Aventis 5.p.z.0 Company under joint contrel  Servicgs purchase Poland Varsovia
FRM Merial S.AS Company inder inind contend vz nierhase Franoe Lyvon
Sanofi Aventis 3.4 Company under joint control Services purchase Spain fSarcelona
Francupia Campany under joint ontrol Goods purchase France Antony Cedex
Sanoff Synthetaho LTD - Company.under jontcontral . Fquinment purehasas Angha - Fawgon :
Nawcastel
“Chingift Povatd Ca LI “Company Under joint control’ T Goods sales, Goods purchaze T Hungary
mamﬂ&oﬂwo&mw
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

{all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON"}, unless otherwise stafed)

20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

20.2 Related parties (“affiliated entities and other related parties”} receivables and payables

» Receivables from related parties (*affiliated entities and other related parties”):

Balance at Balance at
31 December 31 Becember
2017 2016
Zentiva a.s Bratislava 175,043 -
Zentiva Saglik Urunieri 117,908 641,785
Sancfi Romania SRL 86,608,181 94,149,100
Sanofi india Limited - 134,210
Sanofi Winthrop Industrie 32,263,648 45,537,216
Zentiva ks - 170,053
Sanofi Aventis Groupe 480,380 631,134
Total 119,655,160 141,263,498
» Payables to related parties (“affiliated entities and other related parties”):
Balance at Balance at
31 December 31 Decemnber
2017 2016

Zentiva A.S. Bratislava - 1,076,017
Zentiva KS Praga 29,412 299
Zentiva Group 3,871,519 3,211,481
Sanofi-Aventis Deutschland 36,817 4,519
Sanofi Winthrop Industries 11,325,220 9,362,666
Sanofi Romania SRL 6,458,108 2,749 545
Zentiva Saglik Urunleri 2,000 2,000
Sanofi Aventis Spa 27,951 166,286
Sanofi Aventis Private Co - 8,758
Total 21,750,827 16,581,571
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~for the financial-year-ended as at 31 December2017 - -~ -

(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON"), unless otherwise stated)

28. RECATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {continued)

20.3 Details rega.rding tran.sactions with related parties (“affiliated entities and other related

parties™)

~ e 3ales of goods and Services aid/or non-Elfiéntassets 000

Zentiva k3 Pruga

Zenfiva AS Hichovec
Zentiva Saglik Urunieri
Sanocfi Romania SRi.
Sanofi Winthrop Industrie
Sanofi Indfa Limited
Zentiva Gioup

Sanofl Aventis Groupe
Chingin Private Co Ltd
Sanofi-Aventis Deutschland

Trmgeal
FRTEECH

Financial year

ended as at ended as at
31 December 31 December
—— 07 2018
52,503 722,528
796,265 2,103,993
3,459,334 3,698,710
259,808 687 218,350,517
195,864,824 194,819,148
1,585,436 1,710,018
79,262 114,940
1,832,182 1,665,234
- 20,907
ap 852 -
483,387,745 423,208,453

The amount of RON 34,588,474 (2016: RON 48,751,636) representing the saies to Sanofi Winthrop
Industrie which are related to merchandise produced in Turkey and certified for export within Europaan
Union and eliminated from the total sales by the Group due to the fact the Company acted as agent for
this type of transactions. The respective sales are offset with the cost of related merchandise.

The sales presented above do not include the impact of the claw-back tax, as prasented in Noie 5.1

Turnover.

¢ Purchases of goods and servicas

Zentiva AS Hiohovec
Zentiva Group
Sancfi Romania SRL

Clarrain
Sancfi Chimie
sanofi-aventis Deutshland
Zeiitiva K. 5,
__ Sanofi Aventis Spa e
" Chinogin Private Co ltd
Sanofi Aventis Private Co
Total

Financia! year

31 December

Financial year

31 December

43

2017 2018
54,247 55,680
16,678,258 14,893 447
12,540,070 13,025,448
42,350,968 40,785,720
250,228 177,555
11,104 4,952
151,478 113,740
e 170,429 L L BOZB3. o .

- 75,898
- 190,091
72,246,901 69,430,615
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

{all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON”), unless otherwise stated)

20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

The amount of RON 34,588,4?4 (2018: RON 48,761,896) representing the acquisitions from Sanofi
Winthron Industrie which are related to merchandise produced in Turkey and certified for export within
European Union and eliminated from the total sales by the Group due to the fact the Company acled as
agent for this type of transactions. The respective sales are offset with the cost of related merchandise.
The ultimate parent

The ultimate parent of the Company is Sancfi and is based and listed in France.

There were no transactions other than those already disclosed between the Company and Sanofi during
the financial years 2017 and 2016.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Cutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no
guarantees granted or received for any related party receivables or payables.

Each financial year, an assessment is undertaken through examining the financial position of the retated
party and the market in which the related party operates.

20.4 Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

Administrators, directors and supervisory body

In 2018, the Company paid the following amounts to the members of the Board of Administration {*B.A.")
for attendance of regular board meetings:

Financial year Financial year
ended as at ended as at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
B.A. Members ' 54 000 173,250
Total o 54,000 173,250

The Company does not have any obligations regarding pension payments to former C.A. members,
executive management and members of the supervisory body as at 31 December 2017.

Af year end there were no guarantees or other future obligations undertaken by the Company on behaif of
the administrators or directors.

/ﬁmm&éﬁf """" -
o,
[ 26 MR 20y
8 o
{3 .E}Pf‘d_‘fp—rl‘:ﬁc‘iﬁrj‘hﬁcaﬂoi

Hantiffen,

48



NOTES TQO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
--for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017~ e
(all amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei (“RON"), unless otherwrse srated)

21. COMNIITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Rent and leasing expenses — future ob'ﬁgat:'ons:

Between 1.5
Cormmmiimenis (RON) : Less than T year years

Commitments

The i"urnaany nas a rent contract for the office located in Gara Herastrau street, for thﬂ- following 5 years
starting with 1 June 20'16. The expenses reiated (o fulure payments amounts to RON 243,987,

The company has letter of guaraniees and cash coliateral (Note 14).
Taxatiung

All amounis due to Slale authonties for taxes have been paid of accrued at the balance shieet date. The
Romanian tax system undergoes a consolidation process and is being harmonized with the European
iegistation. Diffarent intarpretations may exist at the level of the tax authorities in relation to the tax
iegisiation that may result in additional taxes and penalties payable. Where the State authoriiies have
findings from reviews refating to breaches of Romania's tax laws, and related regulations these may resuli
in: corfiscation of the amounts i case; additional tax liabilities being payable; fines and penalties (that
are applied on the total ouistanding amount). As & result the fiscal penalties resulting from breaches of
the tpnai nm\nc‘.lnn T MAay resi) tina cgr‘m..r:&ni‘ amouid néyab:e io the Stata,

The Company believes that it has paid in due time and in full all applicable taxes, penalties and penalty
interests in the applicable extent.

TRurERiEn T amhonties have completed Teviews of dorporate tax up and VAT Up 16" December 2016

I Romania, the tax position is opsn {o further verification for 5 years.
Transfer pricing

According-to the applisable relevant Romanian tax legislation, the tax assessment of related party:
transactions is based on the concept of market value for the respective transfers. Following this cancept,
the transfer prices should be adjusted so that they reflect the market prices that would have been set
between unrelated companies acting independently {i.e. based on the "arm’s length principle™.

During the year 2017, the Romanian Fiscal Authorities performed two fiscal inspections for review of
related pary transactions as following:

) tn'the period March 2017 =April 2017, the fiscal authorities reviewed the relatad paries
transactions occurred in the period 2011-2016 and a report has been issued in April 2017 and
no issues were mentioned in reiation with these related parties transactions;
Lii} in the period 17 May 201 7- March 2018 ihe tiscal authon’tleq reviewad the refated parfies
S e transactions coeurad-inthe- periu 2011-2018-and epuﬁ has-beenissusd-in r\pxli L\117 ar‘d"" '
- No issues were mentionad in reigtion with these n,iated parties-transactions,

I is likely that transfer pricing raviews will be undertaken in the future in order to assess whether the
transier pricing poiicy cbserves the “arm’s length principie” and therefore no distortion exists that may
affect the taxable base of the Romanian taxtpayer. The Company could not estimate the potential impact
of @ transfer pricing review.

[.:p*éﬁ‘(num;\smm:aﬁmﬂea&ﬁl.\
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ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(all amounis are expressed in Romanian Lel {*RON"), unless otherwise stated)

21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {continued)
Legal claims (including the estimated value)

As at 31 December 2017, the Company is involved in several litigations, of which the most significant are
described below,

»  Litigation with ANM (National Agency of Brugs) which imposed a penalty to the Company due o the
fact in one independent pharmacy store has been identified advertising materials for which the
advertising visa was expired. Buring 2017, the Company contested the respeclive decision and the
litigation is currently in the appeal phase. The financial impact is not material, the amount being RON
5,000 (representing penaity imposed by ANDM to the Company);

»  Litigation with ANAF for challenging the claw-back tax and the penalties computed for the reviewed
period Q4 2008-Q3 2011. During 20186, following to the fiscal audit related to the claw back for the
pericd Q4 2009-Q3 2011, ANAF issued a decision to impeose additional claw back tax and penalties in
amount of RON 18,457,107 for which the Company recorded a provision for tax risks as of 31
December 2018. During 2016, as a result of the contestation submitted by the Company, ANAF
canceled the initial tax decision related to the payment of additional claw back taxes and related
penalties and initiated the procedures for re-audit in 2017 of this fiscal ohligation for the period Q4
2008-Q3 2011. During 2017, a new tax audit was starfed and a new {ax decision was issued for the
amount of RON 8,356,150 representing additional claw back and penaities and interest related to
penaities. The Company decided to challenge back this decision issued by ANAF. This action initiated
by the Company has been rejected by ANAF. The Company will challenge the decision into the
Administrative Court of Justice - for more details in relation with this litigation please refer to the
comments included in the Note 17 Provisions.

» The Company is also involved in severat litigations with the National Health Insurance House
following the challenging of the VAT paid in relation to the claw-back tax for the period Q1 2012-Q4
2012 in an amount RON 944 thousand and as well in relation {o the computlation manner for the
individual consumption communicated for the determination of the claw-back tax for the period Q1
2013-Q3 2013. To date, the Company has won in the Court the recovery of the VAT for the claw-back
tax related to Q4 2012 in amount of RON 184 thousand and will investigate in the future the manners
in which it may recover this amount or offset it against other tax obligations. The other litigations are
in progress at the date of preparation of these financial statements.

¥ During 2018, KJK Fund li, Fondul de pensii facultative NN Activ, Fondul de pensii facuitative NN
Optim and Fondut de pensii Administrat Privat NN as shareholders of Zentiva SA brought an
application to carry out an expertise on certain operations of Company, application based on Article
136 of Law 31/1991 to commercial companies. The applicant's action was dismissed by the
Bucharest Tribunal. Subsequently to this decision, the plaintiffs have appealed. As at the date of
these financial statements, the litigation was suspended for an undetermined period of time.

The Company's management considers that the respective litigations will not significantly impact the

Company's operations and financial position and that it set sufficient provisions where there was
significant risk.

22, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Company is exposed to credit risk, Hiquidity risk and market risk (especially to foreign currency risk}.
The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. Itis the Company’s policy

" that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken. The Board of Administration
reviews and agrees pelicies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.
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AENTIVA SA

o i
~for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017 0 0 oo e
{alf amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON’), unless otherwise staled}

22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ORJECTIVES AND POLICIES {¢antinued)

Market risk

 Mafket Tisk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial msfrument wﬂ' fluctuate
»wterast fate risk _
ings. deposiis ™~ <

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 2017 and
2018.

Irterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financiat instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates, The Comipany’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
intarest rates is not significant, as the Company does not have loans as sourses of financa,

As of 31 December 2017, the Company does not have receivad loans; starting with September 2013, the
Companty conciuded a cash pooiing agieement with the pareni entily at a floating interest rate, as
presenied in Nole 11, 14 and it has debt balance as of 31 December 2017 and respectively as of 31
December 2018, The Company's exposure 16 the interest rate risk changes on the market is not
significani,

Foreign currency risk

Fl'n'e]gﬂ CUITRMLY riwk 1s the rick that the fair value or 6 e nach v]o\ o nf e nnor‘vi"" instrieaant vl

L ) p ) e i 3 ] WL it W¥E

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes
in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or
expeanse is denominated in a different currency from the Company's presentation currency).

Fhie Company has transactions in a curréncy other than'its functional currency (RONJ.

The risk exposure (o other currencies {mainly EUR and USDYis not though very significant and therefore
the Company does not hedge this risk through derivative instruments.




ZENTIVA SA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(alf amounts are expressed in Romanian Lef ("RON"), uniess otherwise staled)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The detail of financial instruments in foreign currencies is presented as follows (amounts are RON
equivalents):

31 December 2017 EUR usb RON MDL GBP TOTAL
Trade receivables 1,385,124 - 156,791,685 - - 158,176,809
Other financial assels - - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 180,621,774 171,000 - 160,792 774
Total assets (1} 1,385,124 - 317,413,458 171,600 - 318,969,583
Trade accounts payable 15,782,997 2,031,122 43,259,508 - 3,148 61,076,772
Othar current liabitities - - 36,010,839 - - 36,010,639
Total liabilities {2) 15,782,997 2,035,122 79,270,144 - 3,148 97,087,411
Gap (1)-{2) {14,397,873)  {2,031,122) 238,143,315 171,600 {3,148) 221,882,172

31 December 2016 EUR uUsD RON MDL GBP Total
Trade receivables 2,483 494 - 141,022,75% - - 143,506,245
Other financial assets - - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalenis - - 127,810,575 99,843 - 127,810,418
Total assets (1) 2,483,424 - 268,833,328 99,843 - 271,416,663
Trade accounts payable 12,482,276 1,835771 49,868,080 - 3,501 64,189,638
Other current liabilities - - 30,198,709 - - 30,186,709
Total liabilities (2) 12,482,276 1,835,771 80,064,799 - 3,501 94,386,347
Gap (1)~ (2} {9,998,782)  (1,835771} 188,768,527 99,843 {3,501) 177,030,316

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US doilar and
EUR exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before
tax is due to changes in the value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign
currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Change in Change in
EUR rate (+10%})- USD rate (+10%)-
Effect in profit Effect in profit
before tax before tax
2017 (1,729,855) {202,505)

2016 (999,878) (183,577)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty wil! not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is rather not exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities, as most of its trade receivables are from related parties; the exposure to credit risk
from its financing activities, including deposits with banks is not significant, as such deposits are usually
overnight, or under 3 months.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company subject to its established policy; however the Compény
considers that the credit risk on rade receivables is fow {mainly intercompany receivables).

Qutstanding customer receivables are monitored and any shipments to major customers are analyzed.
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22, FINANGIAL RISK MANMAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND FPOLIGIES {continited)

The indicators for impairment are analyzed at each reporting date. The Company's credit risk is primarily
attributed to receivables from related parties, for which the probability of losses s considersd remote,

The maximum exposure tc credit risk at the reporting date represents the carrying vaiue of each financial
-.assets which are presented inthe Note 13,

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit visk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed hy the Company's treasury
depariment in accordanice with the Company’s policy. The Company’s maxirmum exposure 1o credit risk
for the components of the statement of financial position at 31 December 2016 is the carrying amounts as
illustrated in Note 14.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors it risk to a shortage ot funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.

The Company does not have long term financing (neither trade, nor finance liabilities).

The aif liabilities of the t_,ompanv wil be mature in a percd iess than 1 year except for the deferred tax
liahility and piovisions.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's trade receivables based on contractual
terms ang conditions and of the Company's financigl Habilities.

31 Brecember 2017 <30 days 30-60 days ~ 60-180 days 180-365 days Total
Trade receivables 123,045 237 27,568,073 4,995,333 2,567,668 158,176,309
........................... Coasin s sash eguivalents. . 18BINIEUEA . BYAF7A0._.

B N

Totai-assels (- - oo PYHOS2.300 - 27, 868,07 F— 10;73‘!-;54-3-""' ;567 666 318,269,583
Trade acnounts payable 71,170,241 6,572,218 1,010,310 2,324,003 51,076,772
Yotai liabilities {2) 5,170,281 6,572,218 1,010,310 2,324,003 61,076,772
34 December 2016 __=30days  30-60 days _60-180 days _1B0-365 ays - Yotal

- Traderecelvables - - - S 147805917 - 2434137 0 204712 - 0 0 AD2607 - 143.B88,240
CHher curent financial assets - - - - -
Cash and cash equivaleris © 122,367 305 - 5,543,111 - _ 127,910,418
Total assets {1) 265.173.226 243,113 5867823 132,508 271,415,683
Trade accounts payable 47,695,045 5,340,224 5,035,187 4,083,843 63, 169 301
Totat liabilitios {2} 47,595,086 5,345,228 8,035,187 4,093,843 63,169,301

Capital management

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital
management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios to support its

h-mmnss angd maximize the sharcholder's valuse,

"""""""""""""""""""""""""""" The Company manages its capital structure arid miakes adjlistiients 16 it i ight of éhaRges i ecenamic

conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, poilc:ies or processes for managing capital dunng
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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for the financial year ended as at 31 December 2017

(alf amounts are expressed in Romanian Lei ("RON”), unfess otherwise stated)

23. EXPENSES WITH THE STATUTORY AUDITOR

During 2017, the auditor, Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL, had a contractual fee fin amount of
EUR 52,500 for the statutory audit of the annual individual financial statements. The services coniracted
by the statutory auditor, other than the statutory audit were in amount of EUR 25,500 representing other
assurance services related to other compulsory reperts. There were not provided or paid cther non-audit
services than the assurance services mentioned above.

24. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE REPCORTING PERIOD

Based on the performance of the market survey, Zentiva NV received the sales commitments of the
shares held by the minority shareholders into Zentiva S.A.’s share capital representing 10.4478% of the
total share capital of Zentiva S A The announcement was published on 14 December 2017 by Zentiva
S.A.

The main details of these sales commitments of the shares are the follows:

i} The subscription within the public offer for acquisition of the property rights on the shares held by
the mincrities on Zentiva S.A. on the entire, exclusive and unencumbered basis, with the
condition that the purchase price offered within the public subscription to be RON 3.5/share, and
the public subscription to be launched in maximum 60 working days since 14 December 2017
("Engagement Period™);

iy Te hold back from the transfer and set up the cumbers or any other rights of the third parties on
the Zentiva S.A. shares of the Zentiva S.A. during the engagement period.

Also, Zentiva S.A. was informed by Zentiva NV regarding the following aspects:

i) Intention to siart the preliminary actions before the launching of the public subscription;

i) Launching of the public subscription by Zentiva NV andfor other person, who acts together or
individually with Zentiva NV is conditioned by the fulfillment of some certain, preliminary
conditions; part of these conditions are out of the Zentiva NV control;

iii) The fact that the purchasing price offered within the public subscription will be set up in
accordance with the statutery taw into the force.

The public offer was launched on 20 February 2018 and & will end up on 5 April 2018.

Also, on 8 March 2018, the Romanian fiscal authorities finalized the tax audit for the period 2011-20186,
the ouicome of this being presented in Note 17 Provisions,
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